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SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to present the annual report of Sam Woo Construction Group
Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Group has completed the Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai
Boundary Control Point project during the year, while the
Hospital Expansion project has proceeded on schedule and is
expected to be completed in 2019. The business environment
of the construction industry has been very challenging during
the year. The construction market has been hard-hit by the
prolonged debates in the Legislative Council during the year,
leading to a large logjam in funding approval for public works.
This has resulted in a substantial drop in the number of open
tenders in the market, and, in turn, intense competition and
suppressed contract prices.

Amidst the keen competition, the Group has recently secured
a new major contract for the Tseung Kwan O Interchange. This
is actually a subcontract for bored pile works which form a part
of the Tseung Kwan O - Lam Tin Tunnel and is valued at about
HK$170 million. The project has commenced in mid-2018 and
is expected to be completed by the end of 2019. While this
project maintains the Group’s momentum, we expect that there
will still be some time before the market recovers. We will need
at least one or two more profitable major new projects in order
to optimise our utilisation of equipment and labour.

Although the public works funding approved by lawmakers
has increased compared with last year, major infrastructure
projects are still awaiting approval. The Legislative Council
(“Legco”) has spent considerable time on arguing issues in
relation to the high-speed rail link project. As such, other
development projects that need to go through the Legislature
have to be deferred till after Legco’s summer break. It is thus
going to take longer before the construction market in the
depth of the valley can rebound. Therefore, we anticipate an
even tougher year to come.
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Despite the decrease in turnover and profit during the year
relative to the previous year, the Group has nonetheless
maintained a sound financial position with a net cash position
at the end of the year. Although the timing for a full recovery
of the construction market remains uncertain, the Directors
have strategically decided to keep the current team structure
and resources in place so as to capture every opportunity for
bidding for major projects when those tenders roll out.

With the government attaching great importance to the
Hong Kong 2030+ Development Strategy, the Directors view
it as a guideline for fulfilling the great demand for housing
and infrastructure in the medium and long term, reinforcing
the sustainable social and economic development of Hong
Kong. The appointment of the Task Force on Land Supply
by the Chief Executive of Hong Kong was a step in the right
direction. The public consultation has also elicited more ideas
from the professional fields in developing land resources. We
understand that the public debate is not a magic solution.
Yet we hope that after voices are heard, it at least speeds
up expediting the existing development plans for projects
mentioned in the Policy Address, such as the East Lantau
Metropolis, Energizing Kowloon East and Hung Shui Kiu
Development.

In March 2017, we acquired 5% equity interest in a property
holding company at a total consideration of approximately
HK$20 million. During the year, the fair value of this investment
appreciated which was attributable to the increase in land
valuation. The purpose of the acquisition is to provide a
springboard for the Group to explore new opportunities in
property investment or property development. Through its
best efforts, the Group also expects to participate in land
development project, bringing to them its wealth of expertise,
skills and experience in construction. As that investment is still
at the preliminary stage, there is no funding pressure on the
Group in the near term.
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SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement

ER|E

Looking ahead, the Board remains prudently optimistic about
the prospects of the construction market. We are confident
that the Group, as one of the most dependable contractors in
the foundation segment with an extensive range of specialised
machinery and equipment, an experienced management team
and decades of valuable project experience, will secure more
projects and participate instrumentally in landmark projects
during the coming years.

| would like to take this opportunity to express my respect
for and appreciation to my fellow Board members,
the management team, all staff members, suppliers,
subcontractors and other business partners and, most
importantly, our shareholders and customers for their support.

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman
Hong Kong

26 June 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Board is pleased to present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year”’/“2018"),
together with comparative figures from the previous year ended
31 March 2017 (the “Previous Year”/“2017”).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Group Revenue and Profit

The Group’s revenue for the Year was HK$518 million,
representing a decrease of 37% as compared with the Previous
Year (2017: HK$818 million).

The Group saw a decline in revenue overall after the
completion of the major project — Liantang/Heung Yuen Wai
Boundary Control Point project — around mid-2017. For the
current year, the major revenue and profit contributor of
the Group was the Hospital Expansion project. The Group
undertook a few new projects during the Year, however,
the contract sums were not significant. Regarding tenders
available, there were few during the Year, and the backlog
of public works and infrastructure projects pending funding
approval continued to build up as a result of filibusters in the
Legislative Council in Hong Kong.

The gross profit and gross margin of the Group for the Year
was HK$44 million and 8% respectively (2017: HK$145 million
and 18% respectively). The decreases were mainly due to
the relatively lower margin of the Hospital Expansion project
derived from subcontracting of non-bored piling works and also
overhead costs such as equipment depreciation and labour
costs which did not decrease proportionately to the reduced
size of ongoing projects.

BB WED T

ExeMAE2BAEEHE2018F3H31
BIEFE(AFE]/T2018F ) KFE
¥4E BRBE2017E3A31BIE LEE
(TEFE]/T20174F ) B L & BUE -

EBOERREE
& E A K A

RARFEE - ANEE AU A A518,000,000
W IT 0 B A (20174 818,000,000
JC) W A37% °

BEXEHAER FEEOREBHOR
2017THFFRTTIR - AEEEBEBBARD
REE  BREREAAAEETIZRA
Fog MR - REBRAFEHEANFEKT
LEFHER - HERSELR - HRIDA
SRNMERAEAKLEMERTIZER B
RIFBERRGH  AFEARBEESESE
AT

RAFE AEENEFNRMNBXS
Bl £44,000,0007% 7T 8% (20174 :
145,000,000/ T K%18%) * FIE TR EZ
FRPA 1 BE P HE A2 TH B FEEFLIE TIRAMNAIRY
FERBEEE  UREBEITERE TR
AEMBERAT TS REERTHIEE R
TR 48 /)N 4= L PR -



SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEWED T

The Group’s net profit for the Year was HK$6 million,
representing a decrease of 93% (2017: HK$79 million).
Net profit margin was 1% (2017: 10%). The decrease was
mainly from the drop in contract revenue and profit margin
as discussed above, while administrative expenses did not
come down. With the Directors decided to maintain the team
structure and resources for capturing opportunities to bid for
major projects in their advent, overheads and administrative
expenses for the Year remained largely the same as before.

Major Projects
As at

31 March 2018
Completion status

RW2018%3A31H

TR R R

Hospital Expansion 68%

EhiERER 68%

Proposed Commercial/Residential Development 75%
in Wong Tai Sin District

BENNERTERER 75%

Tseung Kwan O Interchange Not yet commenced

BERRER ARET
Note: The above remaining contract values were internal estimates

based on currently available information, and may be
subsequently revised.

Hospital Expansion

In July. 2015, the Group won the main contract for foundation
and associated works in relation to the expansion of United
Christian Hospital from the Hospital Authority. The contract
is HK$1,780 million worth, and less all contingent and/
or provisional sums, the actual revenue is estimated at
approximately HK$1,400 million.
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Estimated
Expected Remaining
Completion Date Contract Value
B A BRI ERLE
(HKS)
(%)
2019 Q3 460 million
201946 53F 4.6(8
2019 Q2 35 million
2019F 2% 3,500
2019 Q4 170 million
20195 54%F 1.7
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Management Discussion and Analysis

More than half of the project value is for demolition of existing
buildings, site formation and road reconstruction to prepare
the site for expansion of the hospital. Foundation piling works
account for the remaining contract value.

This project contributed revenue that made up about 81% of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year. Bore piling works were
carried out during the Year and the remaining works to take
place the following year were mainly subcontracted.

As at 31 March 2018, around 68% of the project was
completed and the four-year-project is expected to conclude in
the third quarter of 2019.

Proposed Commercial/Residential Development in Wong Tai
Sin District

This project involving installation of lateral support works was
awarded to the Group in April 2015. The total contract value
is about HK$320 million (including contingent payment and/or
provisional sum), with the first phase worth HK$140 million.

The project contributed revenue amounting to about 8% of the
Group’s total revenue for the Year.

As at 31 March 2018, the first phase of installation of lateral
support works was around 75% completed. As mentioned
in the last Annual Report and Interim Report of the Group,
because of certain technical complications in the first phase
of the project, part of the works had to be re-designed and
re-scheduled. As a result, the estimated completion date has
been postponed and the latest estimate is around the second
quarter of 2019.

New project to commence after the year end date

Tseung Kwan O Interchange

This project is a subcontract for bored pile works for a part of
the Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel. It is an about HK$170

million contract. The project has commenced in mid-2018 and
is expected to be completed by the end of 2019.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK AND RECENT DEVELOPMENT

The Directors expect the new project, namely the Tseung Kwan
O Interchange, which will begin in mid-2018, to contribute
revenue to the Group mainly in the second half of the coming
financial year. However, due to severe price competition for
tenders limited in number as a result of filibusters on funding
approval for public works and infrastructure projects in the
Legislative Council, the Group expects its profit margin to
remain substantially suppressed.

The Group will use its best endeavour to bid for new projects,
but before landing major profitable projects, it expects to
operate in an even tougher environment in the coming financial
year, during which the results could possibly be worsen. To
cope with the anticipated testing times, the Group repaid a
large portion of its borrowings during the year to save interest
expenses and disposed of certain equipment to free up
working capital.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had zero net gearing. The
Directors consider the Group as in a healthy financial position,
which will be able to brace it against operational pressure till
the construction market warms up again when the Legislative
Council speeds up clearing the backlog of public projects
awaiting funding approval.

Gold Champion Enterprises Limited (“Gold Champion”), with
stake held by the Group, owns a group of property holding
companies, and it has received a number of enquiries from
interested parties. The Group intends to at its best — work
together with Gold Champion to take part in land development,
bringing its wealth of expertise, skills and experience in
construction to the projects concerned.

FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Despite the decline in revenue and profit as discussed above,
the Group’s financial position remains healthy, with current
ratio at 1.7 times (2017: 1.4 times) and total cash and bank
balance amounted to approximately HK$259 million (2017:
HK$369 million). Net borrowings were 0 (2017: 0), with the
Group in a net cash position as at 31 March 2018.

10

REREROHRRE

E=FERE2018FRRRMNFTIAR (B

FRXMER) A5 AR ER TEM B F
ETHENTBERARIR - A - HRZ
EERERTHARERERIREL &
RAA - ERARBEBAR - MHEH
ERBEFHR - AHAEENMBEES
FEREBIE -

AEBHEENRENEB  ERSEN
AEMEREB ZAT 0 RPIFEH T @K
FEMKERNE MRS - XEFREE
Z - RENERTNER  AEEAFE
EEERMLYEFAHEMEFZ - A H
EETRENERESAREE

MR2018F3A31H  AEENFEERRE
HEAT BEERAANEENVHMKRIE
- A ERMEARNCER  FF
BRHOAEAHETIZEEEEEEEZSH
i ICEREETABEELR 2 HKE -

AEEFERANEZEECEARAR (2
Bl R —HNEZRAF - B KRBT
LERER AEEHEREEREREN
ﬁ%%ﬂuﬁk AT & BRETBNAIE
EHN2EEELHER

Bt IS EI A& 2 A7

BE N ESCFT Rt s A Rom A B BT T BE
REBW M EAOREITIRIE - MBI R4
B 7B EKF (20174  1.415) -
IR & KR 1T 48R AR EH 4) /5259,000,0007%8
7T (20174 : 369,000,000/ 75) ° ANEE
201863 A31 B &5 FH KT « A
HE8 B0 (20174 1 0) °



“E-N\FFR

=MEEEEARDLE

Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 35% from approximately
HK$45 million in the Previous Year to approximately HK$61
million for the Year. The increase was mainly because of:
() an exchange loss of about HK$8 million and (i) legal
and professional expenses of about HK$10 million incurred
for a completed project. If both (i) and (i) were excluded,
administrative expenses would have remained stable.

()  The exchange loss from the outstanding Euro loans was
the result of appreciation of the Euro between 31 March
2017 and 31 March 2018. Such loans, temporary and
rolling-over on revolving terms, are intended for settling
purchases required to support operation. The Group has
the flexibility to settle when it receives proceeds in Euro or
when the exchange rate is more favourable to it.

(i)  The legal and professional expenses incurred for a
completed project was reimbursed by Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, a director of the Company. The amount reimbursed
was recorded as other income in the financial statement.
Therefore, the Group did not suffer loss from that
completed project.

Finance Cost

Finance cost for the Year was approximately HK$4 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 57% compared to
the approximately HK$10 million in the Previous Year. This
is mainly attributable to the about 68% reduction in bank
borrowings during the Year. The Group managed to trim its
finance cost and at the same time maintain sufficient working
capital to meet the needs of current construction projects.

Taxation
The effective income tax rate for the Year was 2% (2017: 13%).
The decrease in effective tax rate is mainly attributable to the

gain on disposal of plant and equipment in the current year of
about HK$6 million, which is not subject to tax.
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Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group generally finances its capital expenditures by
internal resources, long-term bank loans and finance leases.
The Company also secured additional financial resources
from its listing in 2014. During the Year, the Group invested
approximately HK$1 million in machinery and equipment. As at
31 March 2018, the Group’s capital commitments relating to
purchase of machinery and equipment was nil (2017: nil).

During the Year, the Group disposed of foundation equipment
with net book values of about HK$32 million. The equipment
was intended to be deployed in construction projects
undertaken by the Group. Due to the slowdown in the
construction industry in Hong Kong as a result of a large
backlog in funding approval for public works as discussed
above, the utilisation of the equipment was not as expected.
The Directors consider that the Group should take this
opportunity to dispose of the equipment to free up more
working capital for its operation.

During the Year, save as disclosed herein, the Group did not
make any material acquisitions or disposals of assets.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing
Liquidity

The Group generally meets its working capital requirements
by cash flows generated from its operations and short-term
borrowings. During the Year, the Group generated from
operating activities a net cash inflow of approximately HK$59
million (2017: HK$295 million). Together with short-term
bank loans and overdraft facilities available, the Group’s daily
operations had been financially sound throughout the Year.
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Cash and Bank Balances

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total cash and bank
balances of approximately HK$259 million (2017: HK$369
million) mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Macau
patacas. The decrease in cash and bank balances was mainly
due to the repayment of bank borrowings during the Year.

Borrowings

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately HK$81 million (2017: HK$252 million)
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or Euros. Borrowings
generally include short-term and long-term bank loans, finance
leases and overdrafts bearing floating interest rates. Of the
total borrowings, approximately HK$29 million (2017: HK$137
million) was short-term bank loans and approximately HK$36
million (2017: HK$62 million) was the current portion of
long-term bank loans and obligations under finance lease with
maturity dates within 12 months.

Gearing Ratio and Total Equity

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a net cash position
(2017: same) (net borrowings divided by total equity). The
Group’s net cash position was mainly attributable to the profits
from operations and the reduction in capital expenditure on
machinery and equipment. For the purpose of calculating the
Group’s net gearing ratio, net borrowings refer to the total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank
balances.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s net current assets were
approximately HK$156 million (2017: HK$169 million) and
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) was
1.7 times (2017: 1.4 times). The Group’s total equity as at 31
March 2018 was approximately HK$686 million (2017: HK$696
million).
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollars and Macau patacas. The Group’s revenue, expenses,
cash and bank balances, borrowings, other monetary assets
and liabilities are also principally denominated in those two
currencies. Other than the purchases paid in Euros and
Singapore dollars and such short-term Euros borrowings for
settlement, the Group was not exposed to any significant
foreign currency risk and had not employed any financial
instrument for hedging.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, save for guarantees of performance
bonds relating to two foundation works and ancillary services
projects of the Group of approximately HK$18 million and
HK$17 million, respectively (2017: same), the Group did not
have any material contingent liabilities. The performance bonds
are expected to be released in accordance with the terms of
the respective construction contracts.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2018, the net book amount of plant and
equipment held under finance leases and pledged for long-term
bank loans was approximately HK$84 million (2017: HK$124
million) and approximately HK$117 million (2017: HK$123
million), respectively. None of the banking facilities of the Group
were secured by the Group’s bank deposits (2017: none).
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group emphasises its ability to deliver quality work on time
to customers and within the pre-determined project budget.
To execute the quality assurance policy of the Group, we
have maintained a quality management system which follows
the ISO 9001 standards. Quality assurance functions are
performed throughout the foundation works process from the
construction materials procurement stage to the completion
stage to ensure that the foundation works and ancillary
services meet the standards required by each customer. In
addition, members of our management team communicate
with our customers on a regular basis during the course of a
project to better understand and respond to our customers’
specific requirements. As our foundation business operates
on a non-recurring and project-by-project basis, we have not
entered into any long-term master contract with any of our
major customers. However, through this continued relationship
development, our Group aims to attract further business
from these customers and referrals from these customers.
Our directors consider that our Group has established good
relationship with our customers by delivering constructive
solutions and quality service to them.

Suppliers

We enter into contracts with our suppliers for construction
materials and subcontractors on a project-by-project basis
without a long term contract. Meanwhile, we maintain a
pre-approved list which admission is subject to assessment
of their background (including track record, pricing, market
reputation, timely delivery, financial conditions and after-sales
service) and the satisfactory quality of their construction materials,
and review and update the list from time to time. We also
acquired machinery and equipment from Asian and European
manufactures. We will check the product qualities and make
payments according to the contract terms. The directors consider
that we have maintained good business relationships with these
suppliers, subcontractors and manufacturers. During the year,
there was no material delay or dispute related to them causing
disruption to our operations. Some of them also have developed
good trading history of over years with our Group.
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Employees

We believe that our employees are important assets to our
Group. Our directors recognise the importance of attracting
and retaining staff by providing a healthy and safe working
environment and job security. Our staff receive training to
enable them to acquire the prerequisite skills and knowledge
on health and safety related procedures before they are
assigned to carry out foundation works and ancillary services
on sites. Our Group also performs regular maintenance checks
on the machinery and equipment since our Group regards
regular maintenance as an important element to ensure safety
at the work sites. There was no fatal accidents happened in
the Group’s projects during the year and the accident rate was
lower than the industry average for the construction industry.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had approximately 177
(2017: 210) employees. The remuneration package we offer
to our employees includes salary, discretionary bonuses and
allowances. In general, we determine employee salaries based
on the individual’s qualifications, position and performance
(where applicable). We have designed an appraisal system to
assess the performance of our employees, which forms the
basis of our decisions with respect to salary raises, bonuses
and promotions. Our directors believe that the relationship
and co-operation between our management team and our
employees has been good.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Qur Group also places an emphasis on environmental
protection when undertaking our foundation works and
ancillary services. Our Group’s activities are performed with
the utmost attention to quality, safety and with respect to the
environment. It is the policy of our Group to ensure that all
its activities are carried out in a manner that causes minimum
adverse impact on the environment through the establishment
and implementation of a management system which aims to
achieve environmental targets, comply with environmental
legislation and regulations, foster employees’ awareness
of their responsibilities for the environment; and review the
Group’s performance in respect of environmental matters and
strive to achieve continual improvement of its performance
and prevention of pollution. Trainings are provided to all staff
including the sub-contractor staff on the statutory and other
relevant requirements on environment and the implications of
not complying therewith.

In recognition of the policies and procedures undertaken by
our Group to address potential environmental issues with its
foundation works and ancillary services, in particular, large
diameter bored piles (with bell-out) and rock socketed steel
H-piles in pre-bored holes, our Group was awarded the ISO
14001:2004 (environment management system accreditation)
and renewed the certificate after passing the relevant audits
conducted by external certification body. Our Group also
implements an ISO 50001-based EnMS (energy management
system) that helps us to ascertain our current status of energy
use in order to devise corresponding measures to promote
efficient energy use in machinery and facilities and to formulate
a clear framework to promote continual improvement in energy
management and raise staff awareness on energy efficiency
and conservation. Our Group also monitors continuously on
the compliance with the customer’s environmental protection
requirements and relevant laws and regulations. During the
year, our Group had not been prosecuted by any governmental
authority for any purported breach of any applicable
environmental laws and regulations.
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1. OUR REPORT

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

Overview

This report provides the corporate and social
responsibility performance of Sam Woo
Construction Group Limited (the “Group”) (HKEx
Stock Code: 03822) in environmental, social and
governance from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2018.
This report is in compliance with the “comply or
explain” provisions of Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (ESG Reporting
Guide) under Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited and contains all recommended
disclosures therein.

Scope of Reporting

This ESG Report covers the operation of the
Group’s headquarters office and foundation works
of United Christian Hospital.

Feedback Mechanism

We welcome comments and advices from
readers on this report or on our corporate social
responsibility performance. Whether you are a
customer, a business partner, a common citizen, a
media organization or social group, your comments
and advices will help determine and reinforce
the Group’s future sustainability strategy. Please
provide your feedback via the following contact
information:

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited
=HEEEEARAA
Address H#BiE :

RIE - HE8RER

HE

1. BEMH®RSE

1.2.

1.3.

BRNBERY HR B IEREE25% =18+ /01012

Tel 3% : (852) 2332-0783
Fax & : (852) 2385-0793

E-mail & F#4E : info@samwoo-group.com

)

RpEREBA=-NMEEEEH
ERAB (THAEE) (B
Fr T #8557 1 03822) #£20174F
4H1H £2018F3H31H KR
B HEREANEEMER
ERBEOER - AEE EF
(BABERFIFIBRARFE
ETRADKI 27 GREE - 1t &
RERMmEIES) (ESGImEIE
S5) PTESIE [T ESFRARE]
1R WARIRIE S R BV FTA &2
EBFRIEER -

= AN S B E T
I8

SR

BPEDEERANRE XKL
MOt EHTEELHRSETHF

REBERMEH - THRERR
P ¥EBBH AR HEsk
REEE  SHERRESZY
BENREE Rinse AN EE KRR
AHERRERE - FEBAUT
B4 T RE

10/F, Energy Plaza, 92 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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STAKEHOLDERS COMMUNICATION

The Group recognizes the importance of listening to our
stakeholders’ opinions. Responding to their expectations
and requirements promptly is an indispensable part of
our efforts in sustainable development. Therefore, we
deeply understand the concerns of different stakeholders
to meet their demands and continue to improve, and thus
also enhance the Company’s management capabilities of
sustainable development and drive the realization of the
Company’s strategic objectives.

The Group communicates with our investors through a
variety of channels to ensure that they are up to date with
our latest developments. Such channels include result
announcements, annual and interim reports, meetings,
company publications and company website. In addition,
the Group maintains close contact with customers and
contractors through meetings, telephone conferences and
e-mails. They may also have access to more information
by referring to publications about the Group.

CARE FOR THE ENVIRONMENT
Management guidance and policies

The Group understands the potential environmental
impact associated with construction works; we therefore
are committed to protecting environment and promoting
sustainable development to avoid irreversible damage to
the environment. To demonstrate our commitment on the
environmental protection, the Group has obtained ISO
14001 Environmental Management System Certification
and ISO 50001 Energy Management System Certification,
and has conducted regular internal and external
assessments to evaluate the system effectiveness for
continuous improvement.

The Group has strictly complied with all applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations, and
there were no cases of prosecution due to violation of
the relevant environmental protection laws during the
reporting period.
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Pollution Control

Tackling climate change

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to
sustainable development, we have formulated
regional procurement measures in accordance with
the guidelines of BEAM Plus for New Buildings. With
the preference to use local suppliers and regional
materials, energy consumption and greenhouse gas
emission that arisen from additional transportation
was reduced. In the past year, about 80% of
materials that we used in the United Christian
Hospital project were regional materials which
produced within 800 kilometres.

The Group has spared no effort to adopt
state-of-the-art technologies and equipment, which
not only improves production efficiency, but also
enhances our environmental protection performance
and reduces energy consumption and carbon
emissions. The Group conducts regular equipment
maintenance to improve the operation efficiency and
minimise the additional emissions that caused by
equipment failure.

Direct emission

HIEHHK BER B B HE
(tCO,e)

(AW —F b E =2
78.09 469.35

Total consumption

mEs
Electricity 670.79
7
Gasoline 19,805.52
U
Diesel 3,017,404.16
gem
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Total greenhouse gas emissions

BERBHBMAE

547.43

Carbon emissions

{57,981
0.362 tCO,e
N AR EE
53.631 tCO,e
N U =
8,365.367 tCO,e
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Waste Management

In order to reduce the loading of the landfill and
its associated treatment of waste disposal, the
Group is fully aware of the importance to the waste
management. We identify the source of waste by
assessing the production flow, and thereby working
out an action plan for reduction of hazardous waste.

For the management of non-hazardous waste, the
Group follow the 3R waste management strategy
by minimizing the generation of waste (Reduce) and
considering reuse (Reuse) and recycling (Recycle)
before disposal to fulfil our commitment to waste
management.

In terms of the management of hazardous waste,
we separately store hazardous waste in special
containers with appropriate labels for identification.
When dispose the hazardous waste, we strictly
comply with relevant laws and regulations, a
licenced waste collector would be appointed
for disposal of the hazardous waste. During
the reporting period, no hazardous waste was
generated from the Group.

The following is the annual total amount of waste
produced during the reporting period:

Types of waste

BERMER

Hazardous waste
BEREEY
Non-hazardous waste
BEREZEY
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Annual total

2FEHRE

0 tonnes

O/ MA
69,775.72 tonnes
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Reduction of wastewater discharge

The Group strives to handle sewage discharge in a
responsible manner. The construction wastewater
would be treated at the sewage treatment tank
before discharge into sewage drains to ensure the
compliance with the requirements of the discharge
license. Meanwhile, the Group has always promoted
the concept of recycling wastewater to reduce
wastewater discharge and conserve water.

Use of Resources

The Group has always been responsible for the
natural environment. Therefore, we have formulated
the code of practice and technical guidance to
provide more specific management suggestions and
measures to the employees, to ensure all resources,
including energy, water and other natural resources
are used in an efficient and conservative manner.

Energy conservation and consumption reduction

The Group has always been committed to
promoting environmental protection performance
and reducing energy consumption. In the past,
The Group has implemented a number of targeted
energy-saving renovation projects to further reduce
energy consumption. Furthermore, the Group also
obtained ISO 50001 Energy Management System
certification in the previous reporting period to
demonstrate the Group’s efforts in systematizing
energy management, enhancing energy efficiency
and reducing carbon emissions.
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Water conservation and efficiency enhancement

To minimize construction works’ impacts on and
damage to the environment, the Group incorporates
the concept of using recycled water into the
operation of construction sites. The construction
wastewater would be reused for water spraying for
dust reduction and for equipment cleaning after
treated by sewage treatment tank. This method
helps to reduce water consumption and control
pollution simultaneously. In addition, to protect
precious water resources, we actively promote
the concept of water conservation to employees
and strengthen the management and inspection of
water-consuming equipment so as to achieve the
purpose of water conservation.

During the reporting period, the major resources
consumed by the Group during its operation and
production are summarized as follows:

Resources Unit
EIR B
Electricity kWh
Wi FEB
Gasoline litres
i ¥l
Diesel litres
Lo A
Water m?

7K K
Packaging materials N/A
BEWH TNE A
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3.3. Green Operation

Advocating green office

The Group proactively integrates environmental
responsibility into its daily business operations.
Accordingly, we have established the green office
policy and the management measures of green
operation to reduce environmental impact and the
consumption of natural resources.

Measure name Measure details

BiEaE BEAR

RIR - HERERBRE

3.3. HEpLE

N
\b—
P

EEARE

AR ERES B TRAT
CEABEETAT  HER
MATE e AERE R
BB E R - AR EY
B R B R AR AR -

Green office

RERNE

Promoting Green Concepts
in the Supply Chain

EH RS S BRR

Adopting zoning control for lighting and air-conditioning
systems in the office

A E MR R 22 R LR D B )

Encouraging paperless office by replacing traditional paper
documents with electronic documents
EEEALCRA  FAEFXUERREREEE

Setting air conditioners’ temperature to 25°C
REEHBER/25T

Arranging for the supplier to collect toner cartridges to
minimize the production of hazardous waste

BHESRFREERERYK BRI ERERMNES

Advocating utilization of recycled paper in response to the call
for cherishing the earth’s resources
RIEERBERAERD EIHKER

All contracts entered into with suppliers contain all
requirements on environmental protection. Suppliers are
required to comply with environmental protection laws and
regulations and the standards of the Group
HERAZITNSRATPEERRERENMERT  HEALT
BREREEERREEENTE
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Measure name

a8

Providing Environmental
Protection Training

RARERIF

Green purchase and
management

RERELEE

Measure details
BEAR

The Group will also use posters and emails from time to time
to encourage sub-contractors to comply with environmental
protection measures

REBTTRERAERNEFBHSB S LN ERRREE

The Group provides environmental protection training
for every new employee for them to understand the
requirements and standards of the industry and the Group on
environmental protection.
AEEHEAMABNE TRHRRE - BhMABRBITER
NEBHIRFRE R A E K RFE

At day-to-day meetings, we remind and educate employees
and workers on our environmental protection efforts
EHEGZTHOSRERHMEEIRTIAERRRIE

Give priority to models that are energy efficient and low in
emissions to support environmental protection when they
meet the Company’s requirements

ERERRIERBAT  BEERESHERYGE KRB MR
S AR AR

After completion of a project, tools and equipment that are in
good condition would be transported back to the warehouse
to be used for other projects

EIRBEETIR RERHFNIARKESTEERE - UiE
HMITEHA

The Group would procure materials based on the actual
needs of the project and would record the quantity used for
monitoring to prevent wastage due to lack of management
RIRERFTEFEARBOMBNYE Y BRAENRE
B OBEEARREEMEBURE

Regular inspections and maintenance are carried out in order
to increase energy efficiency and slow down the damage and
prolong the working life of the machineries
EHETEEREMRB AR RN RR I EE -
ERTES S
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Green Construction AR E T

The major pollution source generated by the group WERBBEERERNTEE
is from the daily operation of construction site. To EFERRIR 2 — BERK
effectively control and manage as well as focusing BIESIE R S EIRES R
on various environmental discharges, the Group SEE—E(ZEHEIARIN
has in place a “Green Construction Program” B R RIS S - FE(RE T IR
for control and strict monitoring. It ensures that BEBERKREEERNT M
constructions are carried out in accordance 2HEABEIANBEYEERN
with relevant environmental protection laws and REVERERKE-

regulations to minimize the environmental impacts of

the project construction process on the surrounding

environment.

Airborne dust prevention

iR EE

Noise suppression

)
R

50
ol

Site Management
THhER

Adopting effective dust prevention measures on site (water
sprinkling, hard-paving ground, fencing, netting and sealing)
RSB EEE (EK  wEEL B TEE

E HAF

Ensuring the airborne dust control meets the requirements of
Air Pollution Control Ordinance and Building Environmental
Assessment Method Plus for New Buildings

FERiE LIRS HEEGIRZEICERE RN R (R ERT —
MEREIRT

Noise shall not exceed the requirements of the Noise Control
Ordinance and Building Environmental Assessment Method
Plus for New Buildings

RENFHEBMRZ EHIGEOD) RGERIRT —FREEIAT

Regulating and controlling noise instantly on the construction

site
TE 15 T35 5730 060 25 3 77 By B R) B2 47
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Site Management
ITHhER

Wastewater treatment ° Applying for s wastewater discharge permit according to the
discharge requirements

57K BRI o EBBEMERAFFKBENF A &

° Assigning qualified units to monitor wastewater quality
s ZREABERMELETENKKERA

° Ensuring the wastewater discharge meets the requirements of
the Water Pollution Control Ordinance
o WERISKBEBGERICHKOTRE RIRA) R E

Waste management ° Setting a temporary storage site for waste
REEYE IR s  RIUBEEVEREITESM

o Conducting waste classification with clear categorization
s SNHEBRIUAHBENEREE

° Hazardous solid waste is required to be classified and placed
in a confined area
s EFEEBEENMVASIBNE URIHEHAFNR

o When certain amounts are stockpiled, local certified collector
is engaged to dispose of the waste
e BE TEERAUNEZAEHEERHNKEEA —KIE

° Ensuring the requirement of the Waste Disposal Ordinance

are met

s BENA(EMREEGRIDNRE
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GROWTH AND WIN-WIN

4.1.

Equal Employment

Management guidelines and policies

To become the “best employer”, we endeavour to
build a working environment that features mutual
respect, harmonious coexistence and safety first;
and we also provide training courses and career
development opportunities to employees for
improving in work. We have a dedicated human
resources committee to regularly review and
improve the relevant policies, so as to ensure that
they are in compliance with local laws and industry
guidelines. During the reporting period, the Group
did not find any violations or receive complaints
concerning discrimination or recruitment.

Equal opportunity and diversity

We adopt
non-discrimination to ensure that each job

a policy of diversity and

applicant has equal right to apply for a job, and
that employees are treated fairly and impartially in
recruitment, probation, promotion, resignation and
other aspects. In considering the recruitment and
promotion of an employee, we refer to his/her job
performance, experience and personal ability of the
employee as the promotion criteria, and will not
discriminate against or disregard him/her on the
grounds of sex, age, race or physical condition.
Furthermore, we would base salary adjustments of
an employee on his/her performance and the market
level.
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Employee benefits

We enter into employment contracts with employees
in accordance with Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance to protect employees’ legal rights and
interests and ensure they are entitled to paid leave,
sick leave, work-related injury leave and maternity
leave in accordance with statuary standards.
Moreover, if an employee has suffered from an injury
or died as the result of an accident at work, the
Group would pay a reasonable compensation to the
employee and their family in accordance with the
labour law. The Group’s policy is strongly against
overtime work for employees. Prescribed overtime
pay and compensatory leave would be given for
overtime work.

The Group is also attentive to the physical
and mental health of employees, and therefore
encourages employees to achieve work-life
balance. Our United Christian Hospital site also
hosts recreational activities from time to time
to help employees relieve work pressure and to
strengthen relationship among them, and enhance
the employees’ cohesion and sense of belonging
towards the Company.
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4.2. Occupational Health and Safety 42 BEREREATSE

Management guidelines and policies

We always consider security affairs as a priority
of the Group. We strive to create the safest and
most suitable working environment with zero
accidents by implementing various management
measures to prevent potential risks of occupational
diseases and industrial casualties. We have
established a complete occupational health
and safety management system and conducted
regular inspections and assessments, and have
continuously passed certification of OHSAS 18001
Occupational Health and Safety Management
System.

During the reporting period, there was no case of
violations of local occupational health and safety
laws and regulations, nor any work-related fatalities.
Unfortunately, however, two of the site employees
were injured during work and lost 342 work days
as a result; in order to prevent reoccurrence, we
immediately investigated after the accident and
formulated mitigation measures and strengthened
supervision to safeguard our employees.

Evaluation of site safety risks

In order to identify all health and safety hazards
and risks, we conduct preliminary inspections on
operational and on-site work to identify level of
potential risk. For high risk works, the Group would
conduct risk assessment to formulate different
levels of control measures. Objectives have been
set for the processes with significant risks for better
management.
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Management of site safety

The Group has also carried out a safety inspection
scheme whereby an appointed person would be
delegated to perform regular safety inspections
to ensure construction staff obey the safety rules
at all times. We hold safety meeting each month
to review the performance of each subcontractor
in occupational safety and health and the
environmental, and jointly formulate effective
improvement and corrective measures. For high
risk jobs, the management staff would determine
the appropriate personal protective equipment for
the employees to ensure their safety. In addition to
a series of mandatory measures, we would select
and reward frontline workers who have outstanding
performance in occupational safety and health
and the environment every month; and thereby to
encourage more workers to pay attention to affairs
concerning occupational safety and health and the
environment.

Safety training

Furthermore, as a responsible employer, we provide
employees with adequate occupational health and
safety training. All employees who worked at the
construction site must first go through a safety
induction training session whereby the responsible
safety supervisor would provide relevant training,
including briefing on safety related laws, operational
safety guidelines, potential dangers on site and
emergency responses to enhance their operational
safety awareness.
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4.3. Training and Development 4.3. BIIERE

Management guidelines and policies

The success of the Group relies on the efforts of our
employees and we also understand that continuous
improvement is the key element of our business
success. As such, we encourage employees to
engage in life-long learning and assist them in
improving their skills relating to their positions and
developing their potential so they can grow with the
Group.

Training System

The Group has sponsored and provided
opportunities for employees to participate in
various trainings to enhance their knowledge and
skill, for example providing mechanical operations
training for technician trainees and sponsoring
their license examinations. Furthermore, the
Group would nominate a number of employees
to attend operations trainings, for new machine
models, provided by the manufacturers; and
would also participate in the exhibitions to visits
latest mechanical developments. Through such
programs, employees would be able to gain
more comprehensive knowledge on mechanical
operations and grasp new skills faster to help
driving the Group’s development.

In daily operations, the Group would arrange for
team leaders to provide on-the-job training and
experienced staff would give work guidance for
junior level employees. In addition, managerial staff
would attend seminars on construction industry
management or new developments, organised by
industry or professional organisations to enhance
their knowledge in management and broaden their
horizons. If a department deems it necessary,
employees may be allocated to other positions to
acquire knowledge and experience from different
fields.
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4.4. Protection of Rights and Interests

Management guidelines and policies

The Group and its subsidiaries prohibit the
employment of child labour. The Company does
not employ any child labour and forced labour in
any form. During recruitment, we would check the
applicants’ identity cards and other valid certificates
for age verification. During the reporting period, the
Group found no cases of child labour and forced
labour.

5. OPERATIONAL COMMITMENT

5.1.

Supply Chain Management
Management guidelines and policies

In addition to proactively consolidating the internal
management of sustainable development, the Group
wishes to exert its influence within the supply chain
to jointly contribute to sustainable development
with suppliers, clients, and other stakeholders. We
clearly set out our requirements and standards for
society, environmental protection, and occupational
health and safety in the bidding and procurement
process, and establish effective mechanisms to
ensure that both parties will act in strict accordance
with laws and regulations.
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Supplier selection criteria

The Group has established an internal policy
to regulate the tendering and quoting process,
which requires that detailed assessments must be
performed on suppliers and contractors to ensure
that they meet the Group’s internal requirements;
the policy covers suppliers’ and contractors’
past performance, labour rights, performance in
occupational safety and health and environmental
protection, financial position and business ethics.
Moreover, all departments within the Group maintain
close communication to monitor and ensure that
the tendering and procurement process meets the
standards and is fair and transparent.

Stringent regulation

The project management team of the Group
would continuously monitor the skill and labour
safety performance of the contractors, recording
the relevant inspection results for follow up
work. We would also hold regular meetings with
contractors to review the quality and speed of
work of the contractors. Furthermore, the Group
has implemented environmental protection and
occupational, safety and health guidelines for
contractors. These include construction and
engineering design, material selection, pollution
control and other good practices. Additionally, the
Group would instruct suppliers and contractors
to provide training related to the operations of the
Group’s environmental management system.
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5.2. Quality Construction 52. EEMEL

Management guidelines and policies

The Group has always regarded the quality of
products as the key to our business success.
Therefore, we strive to provide customers
with high-quality, healthy and safe foundation
engineering in accordance with all applicable laws
and regulations. We have in place a complete
safety and quality management system which
enables us to prevent major accidents and provide
quality products and services to meet customer
requirements. The Group has continuously obtained
ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification.

During the reporting period, there was no violation
of laws and regulations on the health and safety of
products and services, labelling, and privacy, and
did not have any cases of product recall for safety
or quality reasons and received no complaints.

Product safety

In order to ensure all piles meet relevant safety
standards, we conduct product testing with specific
and effective methods to make sure that our
products meet quality and technical requirements.
We have developed testing and inspection plans
for different stages of the construction project,
and run various appropriate tests on all piles in
accordance with the relevant contractual provisions
upon completion of projects; of which, quality
control tests cover a wide range of areas, including
inspection of the angle of inclination of the bored
pile, the quality of concrete and fractures, the
binding force between the concrete and rocks,
and a series of incoming quality control to ensure
the quality and safety of the product in all aspects.
The Group would also provide customers the test
reports of all piles to guarantee the stability of the
pile structure.
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Customer service

We continue to raise the bar when it comes to
customer service, so that we satisfy and exceed
customers’ expectations. During the reporting
period, our United Christian Hospital site received
commendation letters from customers to recognize
the Group’s philosophy of “customer-oriented” and
“heart-felt caring service”. In addition to serving
with care, our product services also cover quality
assurance after completion of the project. We
would, in accordance with the relevant contract
terms, be responsible for fixing any construction
defects within the warranty period. Typically,
the warranty period is within one year after the
completion of the project. In addition, we set up
different channels to communicate with customers
and collect their feedback on products and services
for review.

Privacy of consumer data

The Group focuses on information security and
confidentiality and requires all employees to comply
with policies and local regulation. The Group stands
by the confidentiality clause in the signed contract
with the customers, ensuring that the information
and documents provided by the customers would
be properly stored.

Advertising and Labelling

As a responsible company, the Group understands
the importance of advertising and sales pitches.
Accordingly, our business units strictly comply with
all laws and self-discipline practices relating to the
labelling and promotion of products and services.
In addition, we regularly review management
objectives to make sure that the publicity
information is timely and accurate and complies with
relevant laws and regulations.
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5.3. Corporate Governance 5.3. (bR

Management guidelines and policies

Integrity and justice have always been the core
values of the Group. We will not tolerate any form of
corruption, including bribery and solicitation, fraud,
and money laundering. As such, to create and
maintain an ethical corporate culture, the Group has
expressly formulated an effective code of conduct to
ensure that employees act with integrity, impartiality,
and honesty.

Preventive regulation

In order to prevent any conflict of interests, we have
established interests, and employees should first
make a statement to the board of directors through
reporting channels. We have also formulated fair,
open and impartial procedures for product or
service procurement or tendering to inhibit any
potential corruption. In addition, the Group employs
independent auditors to audit the Group’s financial
statements, to ensure that the Group’s accounts
are correct and to strengthen financial oversight to
protect the interests of shareholders.

Whistle-blowing procedures

As a part of anti-corruption measures, we have
established a reporting system, and have developed
relevant policies to effectively implement internal
monitoring and risk management. The policies
provide reporting guidelines and channels for
employees, and helps increasing employees’
alertness towards fraud, corruption and other
misconduct.

Based on the above-mentioned monitoring and
prevention measures, there were no cases of
corruption involving either of the Company or
individual employees during the reporting period,
and no corruption was found.
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GIVING BACK TO SOCIETY

We are committed to creating sustainable prosperity for
all stakeholders. The Group welcomes cooperation with
community groups that share our corporate responsibility
concept, and has responded to the social needs in
culture, education and other aspects by supporting
non-profit organizations through donation, sponsorship,
and volunteer services.

AWARD AND ACHIEVEMENT

Award and achievement name

RE/RHRER

ISO 14001 Environmental Management System Certification
ISO 14001 B E LB XRFE

ISO50001 Energy Management System Certification
[ISO 50001 E/F B E% 2 2 Ao Eﬁ

OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health and Safety Management
System Certification
OHSAS 180071 B 2 i ft &k &2

Iiﬂl‘é

2B RRR

ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification
|SO 9001 !%EEE F!E/%uu uyj

April 2017, The Best Sub-Contractor of “Automatic Forms”
Promotion Programme For April of 2017 (Liantang/Heung
Yuen Wai Boundary Control Point Site Formation and
Infrastructure Works — Contract 6)

20174 A [RBEBR ] BRI ERKED H 2 HEE
(BEREZEEORT M TEREMRERTIE - TEA46)
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Polluting emissions

75 Bk R

Solid waste

EREEEY

Hazardous waste

BEEREY

Hazardous waste intensity
BEREYEE
Non-hazardous waste
BEEREY

Non-hazardous waste intensity
BEEEVEE

Greenhouse gas emission and intensity
BMERBHEREREE

Total greenhouse gas emissions
BERBBHENEE

Direct emission

B

Energy-related indirect emissions
BRI HE X

Emission Intensity

BEREE

ENVIRONMENT
BRI
Unit
B

kg

NIy

kg/per cubic metre of concrete
DT/ B FAKBERL

tonnes

Nl

tonnes/per cubic metre of concrete
AW/ KB

tCO,-e

AE_S(LIRE S

tCO,-e

AE—E(LixE 2

tCO,-e

RE_S(LIRE S

tonnes/per cubic metre of concrete
A= bIRE S/ B RKRE T
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Polluting emissions

SRR

Energy use

BEIRE A

Power purchased’

BENEN

Power use intensity
BEE

Gasoline

it

Gasoline use intensity

BRI

Diesel

ey

Diesel use intensity

SORERAEE

Water

K

Water use intensity

RKREE

Notes:

ENVIRONMENT
BE
Unit
B

mWh

JKFLBF
mWh/employee?
KEK,BHETI?
litres

AF

670.79

22.36

19,8056.52

litre/per cubic metre of concrete 0.78

DNF T AKERL
litres

AFt

3,017,404.16

litre/per cubic metre of concrete 119.48

INAVESSVE Y)Y Jan
cubic metres

3,441.00

cubic metres/per cubic metre of concrete 0.14

SR B ORKR R

i

1: As the power use on construction sites is provided by 1:

main contractors of the sites, only the power use of the

Hong Kong office is contained

2: As the data includes only power use of the Hong Kong 2:

office, the number of employees in the Hong Kong office is

used for the calculation of intensity
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RIR - HEREABBRE

HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORTING GUIDE INDEX

ESG Reporting Guide Subject Areas/Aspects/”
Comply or Explain” Provisions

ESGHR &I TRER EBE TETRBEKX

A. ENVIRONMENT

A RIT

Aspect A1: Emissions

EEA1: HEBY

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : EREH

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHA3 : RIERXAER

B. Society

B. £&

Employment and Labour Practices
BREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EBEB1 : EfE

Aspect B2 : Health and Safety
BEB2: REHZZ

Aspect B3 : Development and Training
EBEBS3 : #RKRIE

Aspect B4 : Labour Standards
[EEB4 : %5 TX8|

Operating Practices

EERER

Aspect B5 : Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS5 : ftIEEER

Aspect B6 : Product Responsibility
BEB6 | EmEE

Aspect B7 : Anti-Corruption
EBEB7 : RES

Community
#HE
Aspect B8 : Community Investment

BEBS : #HERE
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ESG Reporting Guide Chapter
ESG HEEH

3.1.1 Pollution Control

3.1.1 5

3.1.2 Making Good Use of Resources
312 EAER

3.1.3 Green Operations

313 xEEE

3.2.1 Equal Employment

321 FEER

3.2.2 Occupational Health and Safety
322 BERFRELE

3.2.3 Training and Development

3.2.3 IBIER

3.2.4 Protection of Rights and Interests
3.2.4 BHRE

3.3.1 Supply Chain Management
3.3.1 fEEER

3.3.2 High-quality construction
332 @EET

3.3.3 Corporate Governance
333 ¥Rl

3.4. Giving Back to Society
3.4. BfEttR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance, and strives to maintain transparent
and responsible management practices that will create long
term value for the interests of shareholders. The Board will
continuously review and improve the Group’s corporate
governance practices, and maintaining a high standard of
business ethics across the organisation.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) under
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year ended 31
March 2018.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry with all directors, the directors confirmed that
they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 March 2018.

As required under the CG Code, the Board has established
guidelines no less exacting than the Model Code for relevant
employees in respect of their dealings in the securities of the
Company.
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THE BOARD

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance
long term shareholders’ value. The Board oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance
of the Group. It also ensures that good corporate governance
policies and practices are implemented within the Group. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care, and in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. The management is
responsible for execution of the strategies in the Group’s daily
operations and implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

The Board currently comprises 7 members whose biographies
and family relations are set out in the “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” section on pages 54 to 57 in this annual
report. The posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are separately held by Mr. Lau Chun Ming and
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, respectively, to maintain an segregation
of duties between the Chairman’s responsibility to manage
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Group’s business and oversee the management.
The directors bring a good balance of skills and experience to
the Company. The independent non-executive directors serve
the relevant function of bringing independent judgment on the
development, performance and risk management of the Group.
The directors have been made fully aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to shareholders.

The executive directors have entered into service contracts
with the Company and each of the independent non-executive
directors has been appointed on specific term of three years.
Notwithstanding the specific term of appointments, the articles
of association of the Company provides that every director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. At each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible for re-election by the shareholders.
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Board meetings

The Board held six meetings during the year ended 31
March 2018, at approximately quarterly intervals. All directors
attended these meetings, at which business development,
investment strategies, financial performance and potential risks
relating to the daily operations of the Group, were discussed.

Directors’ induction and development

In the year ended 31 March 2018, all directors complied
with the provision of the CG Code in relation to continuous
professional development and submitted their training records
to the Company. In doing so, the directors have undertaken
various forms of activities that have included attending a
presentations given by external professional advisors, and
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business,
directors’ duties and responsibilities. The Company held a
training for regulatory and compliance update for all directors
during the year and intended to arrange another training for
them to refresh their knowledge in the forthcoming year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain Board committees to
oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and help
it in the execution of its responsibilities. These committees
each have specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties, and which
require the committees to report back on their decisions or
recommendations to the Board.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee is responsible for the engagement of
external auditor, review of the Group’s financial information and
oversight of the Group’s financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management system. It is made up
of three independent non-executive directors including Mr. Ip
Tin Chee, Arnold (chairman), Professor Wong Sue Cheun,
Roderick and Mr. Chu Tak Sum.

The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 March 2018, which was attended by all of its members,
to review, among other matters, the consolidated financial
statements, internal control review report and continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017, and have a private meeting with external auditor
without the presence of the management; and the unaudited
interim financial statements of the Group for the six months
ended 30 September 2017.

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible for
annually reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board (including its mix of skills, knowledge and experience),
making recommendations on proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors. It also oversees
the implementation of the Company’s policy on diversity of
directors. It is made up of four members including Professor
Mr. Chu Tak Sum,
Mr. Ip Tin  Chee, Arnold, being independent non-executive

Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick (chairman),

directors, and Mr. Lau Chun Ming, an executive director.
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The Company has a diversity policy of Board members. Under
this policy, the diversity of the Board is considered in terms
of factors such as gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments are
based on merit, and candidates are considered against various
objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee held one meeting during the year
which was attended by all of its members. It is responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all the directors
and senior management of the Group and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy for approval by the Board. It is made
up of four members including Mr. Chu Tak Sum (chairman),
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold,
being independent non-executive directors, and Mr. Lau Chun
Ming, an executive director.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior
management, performance and contributions of the Directors
and the senior management and the change in market
conditions. Details of the remuneration paid to the directors
and the other five highest paid employees are set out in notes
29(a) and 7(c), respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard
shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets, and
reviewing their effectiveness of annually through the audit
committee. The audit committee reports to the Board on any
material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

The Group has maintained an operation manual, which
provides a comprehensive internal control guidance and
procedures on the Group’s operational cycles relating to
revenue, purchase and expenditure, inventory and human
resources etc., to ensure proper accounting records are
kept so that reliable financial reporting can be provided,
effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be achieved,
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,
together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also
shaped the control environment at which and how the Group
operates in, including the budgeting controls, investment
decision making, risk assessment and practices of corporate
governance. These systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and protection against
errors, losses and fraud.

The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department, however, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different
aspects of the Group which are discussed below.

The Company has appointed an internal control adviser to
conduct annual review on the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year and reported their
findings and recommendations to the audit committee and the
Board. It is designed to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls so as to provide assurance that key
internal control measures are carried out appropriately and are
functioning as intended. During the year, fixed assets, human
resources, treasury, financing and investment cycles were
reviewed and found that adequate controls are in place.
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For the foundation works business, the Group has to comply
respective requirements and pass the regular reviews in order
to retain its listing in the Development Bureau Specialist List
(Group 1) in large diameter bored pile (with bell-out), the
Housing Authority List of Piling Contractors (large diameter
bored piling category) Probation and the Buildings Department
Registered Specialist Contractor — Foundation Category.
The Group has also implemented a management system in
accordance with the requirements under ISO 9001, ISO 14001,
ISO 50001 and OHSAS 18001 to ensure that the Group’s
services meet the requisite health and safety, quality and
environmental requirements. During the year, the Group passed
the audits conducted by external consultants and renewed
these certificates. Upon completion of pile construction,
the Group is required to engage external professionals to
conduct various applicable tests on all piles based on the
relevant contractual requirements and ensure full compliance
with customer requirements. Subject to these piling records
available to the customers for their testing and inspection,
the authorised persons employed by the customers certify
the value of the works completed in the payment certificates
issued to the Group. Therefore, stringent on-going controls and
monitoring systems have already been embedded in the daily
operations of the foundation works business.

The executive directors held monthly meetings with senior
management to review and monitor the business and financial
performance against the targets, the progress of certification
and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group’s resources in comparison to the
budgets, and the operational matters to ensure the Group has
complied with the regulations that have material impact to the
Group’s business. The aim is to enhance the communication
and accountability of the directors and management so that
significant strategic, financial, operational and compliance
risks or potential deviations are timely identified and dealt
with in a proper manner, while significant issues are reported
back to the Board for their attention. The Company also
compiles monthly reports to the Board (including independent
non-executive directors) to update the latest financial
performance, position and prospects of the Group.
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The Company also has a policy for disclosure of inside
information. While any potential inside information will be
escalated to the executive meetings or the Board via the
established reporting channels, the directors will assess and
determine if inside information of the Company exists where
timely disclosure is required to be made by an announcement
published on the Stock Exchange website. On the other hand,
in order to enhance the communication with the market, the
Company will publish voluntary announcements to update
the public on the latest development of the Group’s business
to enhance the transparency of the Company, whenever
practicable.

The Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system at its Board meeting
on 26 June 2018, including its financial, operational and
compliance controls, and its risk management functions.
The Board’s review included a consideration of the internal
control evaluations conducted by the executive management,
the findings of the external auditors during the annual audit
and the internal control review reported by an internal control
adviser engaged by the Company. There was no material
fraud or errors came to the attention of the Board from all
these sources. Therefore, the Board was satisfied that the
risk management and internal control systems were in place
and implemented effectively during the year without significant
weakness identified.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Total auditors’ remuneration for year ended 31 March 2018
in relation to statutory audit work of the Group amounted
to HK$1.5 million (2017: HK$1.5 million), of which a sum
of HK$1.2 million (2017: HK$1.2 million) is paid or payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers, independent auditor of the
Company, in respect of the audit services related to the audit
for the year ended 31 March 2018.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing
the financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is
fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The reporting responsibilities of
the Company’s external auditor on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group are set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 70 to 80 of this annual report. The
directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary Mr. Chan Sun Kwong
coordinates the supply of information to the directors and is
the primary contact person within the Company for all matters
relating to the duties and responsibilities of the company
secretary. All directors have access to the company secretary
to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. During the year, he had taken no
less than 15 hours relevant professional training as required
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to his
biographical details which are set out on page 57 of this annual
report.

el

TRERHRE

EERKBOREMBRR 2EE

EFNERENREEAETRAR T RIRAE
BARR 2 MR AEREET - EREZ
FEERRAFZWBRRE - LARRK
ERFAEENSEEK - AAFINERZ
BENHARBELRAMBRR 2 2REEH
RAFHRETOEB0R Z B XA E o
EEMA YEBRIAEHFRBEANE
ATAARAERMREHAREFEL LR
NELEEREM -

DREAME

ARBZARIMEREAREREHAR
EERUEN  ARARPRARMERS
EBEN—VEEEETARBERBA
A FIBEEARERRMERERR R
R% - HREHETEESREFLAAE
AR - MAIRARD - £ REIMER
LR RIS 205 E 2T D R151E )
R EEREEXIE - FRAARWENEE
F2RAFRELTA ©



SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Corporate Governance Report

TEERRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

We endeavour to ensure that shareholders are treated fairly
and are able to exercise their shareholders’ rights effectively.
Shareholders are entitled by the articles of association of
the Company and are also encouraged to participate in the
Company’s general meetings or appoint proxies to attend
and vote. Shareholder(s) holding not less than 10% of the
Company’s paid-up capital may request the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting and put forward proposals.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary for the such purpose and specify the
transaction of any business to propose in such meeting.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as
director in a general meeting, the particulars of the candidate
must be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited
together with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to
the company secretary at the Company’s headquarters or at
the Registration Office (Tricor Investor Services Ltd., Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong) of the
Company. The notice should be given at least seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

There was no amendment made to the constitutional

documents of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2018.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

We are committed to maintaining effective and timely
dissemination of the Group’s information to its shareholders
and the market. We have established a shareholders’
communication policy which emphasises the importance of
regular communication to the shareholders and the market to
ensure they have the available information reasonably required
to make informed assessments of the Group’s strategy,
operations and financial performance. The annual shareholders’
meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the Company
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. In addition,
the Company’s website (www.samwoo-group.com) contains
extensive company information which is easily accessible.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chun Ming, aged 75, is an executive director, the
Chairman and founder of the Group. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. Lau is responsible
for the overall strategic planning and business development
of the Group, overseeing the tendering and quotation
process, research and development and formulation of overall
corporate policies of the Group. Mr. Lau has been involved
in the foundation works business since 1990. He is a brother
of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and Mr. Lau Chun Ka, the spouse of
Ms. Leung Lai So and the father of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, aged 66, is the chief executive officer
and an executive director. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries within the Group. He joined the Group in the
1970s. He is responsible for the overall management of
foundation works and ancillary services projects of the Group.
He has been involved in the foundation works business since
1990. He is the brother of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau
Chun Ka, brother-in-law of Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Mr. Lau Chun Ka, aged 64, is an executive director. He
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
He joined the Group in the 1970s. He is responsible for the
overall management of maintenance and repair of machinery
and equipment of the Group. He has been involved in the
foundation works business since 1990. He is the brother of
Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, brother-in-law of
Ms. Leung Lai So and uncle of Ms. Lau Pui Shan.

Ms. Leung Lai So, aged 71, is an executive director. She
is also a director of various subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in the 1970s. She is responsible for
the administrative and human resources management of
the Group. She obtained a diploma in smaller company
management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
July 1997. She is the spouse of Mr. Lau Chun Ming, mother of
Ms. Lau Pui Shan and sister-in-law of Mr. Lau Chun Kwok and
Mr. Lau Chun Ka.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick, aged 73, was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in September 2014. Professor Wong holds a
bachelor’'s degree of arts from San Diego State College in
the United States of America, and a doctoral’s degree in
mathematics from the University of Alberta in Canada. He is
a Fellow of the Royal Society of Canada, and Chevalier dans
I’Ordre National de la Légion d’Honneur of France, and elected
as a member of the European Academy of Sciences. Currently,
he is Chair Professor of Mathematics and the Director of the
Liu Bie Ju Centre for Mathematical Sciences at City University
of Hong Kong. He is also the Special Advisor to the President
at Southern University of Science and Technology of China.

Mr. Chu Tak Sum, aged 70, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Chu is a registered architect in Hong
Kong under the provisions of the Architects Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 408 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and has been
engaged as an architect for about 42 years. Mr. Chu obtained
a bachelor’'s degree of arts in architecture studies from The
University of Hong Kong in 1971. He is also a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects and holds Class
1 Registered Architect qualification of the PRC. Mr. Chu is
currently the managing director of T.S. Chu Architects Limited.
He had been an independent non-executive director of Henry
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 859) until February 2018.

Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2014. Mr. Ip obtained a Master of Arts degree
from Trinity College, Cambridge University. Mr. Ip is chairman
of Altus Holdings Limited (stock code: 8149), which group
companies focus on providing corporate finance services
to listed and unlisted companies in Hong Kong, as well as
property investments.
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Mr. lp is an independent non-executive director of Pioneer
Global Group Limited (stock code: 224), Pak Fah Yeow
International Limited (stock code: 239), and Icicle Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8429) each of which is a
company listed on Stock Exchange. Mr. Ip worked for
Standard Chartered Asia Limited and was a director of Yuanta
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited thereafter until January 2001,
specializing in a range of corporate finance and advisory
activities for companies based in Hong Kong and China. From
1984 to 1988, he worked at Arthur Andersen & Co in London
specializing in taxation and qualified as a Chartered Accountant
in 1988.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Kwai Keung, Peter, aged 63, is the Deputy General
Manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
business development, tendering and overall management
of the foundation works and ancillary services projects of the
Group. He obtained a master degree in arbitration & dispute
resolution from City University of Hong Kong in 2003. He has
more than 35 years of experience in the construction industry
both locally and abroad. He is a member of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Mr. Kwok Kan Kuen, Lawrence, aged 54, is a project
manager of the foundation division. He is responsible for the
supervision of the related foundation projects of the Group.
Prior to joining the Group in July 2012, he has over 20 years of
experience in the engineering field. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering from the Chu Hai College in 1987
and a master’s degree of science in international construction
management and engineering from the University of Leeds
in the United Kingdom in 1994. He is currently a registered
professional engineer under the Engineer Registration
Ordinance (Cap. 409 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and a
member of each of the Institution of Civil Engineers of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
respectively.
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Mr. Yiu Yu Ho, Thomas, aged 68, is the Operational Director
of the foundation division. He is responsible for the managing,
supervising and actuating the current projects of the Group. He
has over 46 years of experience, working in the construction
industry, since graduated in 1971 from Civil Engineering
Department of Hong Kong Baptist College.

Ms. Lau Pui Shan, aged 44, is the chief financial officer of the
Group and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
She joined the Group in September 1999. She is responsible
for financial accounting, treasury and banking matters,
investors relation and information technology system of the
Group. She obtained a bachelor’s degree of commerce in
accounting and finance and a master’s degree of commerce in
international business from the University of New South Wales
in Australia. She is a fellow certified practicing accountant of
CPA Australia and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She is the daughter of Mr. Lau
Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 51, is the company secretary
of the Company. He obtained a diploma of business
administration from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now
known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom, the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
an accredited mediator of The Hong Kong Mediation Centre.
He has over 25 years company secretarial experience.
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The directors of the Company submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of foundation
works and ancillary services. The principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements. The segment information of
the operations of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018
is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and principal risks of the Group for
the year are included in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis in this annual report.

The environmental policies and relationships with key
stakeholders are included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis in this annual report. Further details of the above are
included in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

on page 81 of this annual report.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the published results and of the assets and

liabilities of the (Group for the last five years is set out on page
184 of this annual report.
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DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to about HK$40,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 March 2018,
calculated under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman Islands, amounted
to HK$200 million (2017: HK$202 million).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

No shares were issued in the years ended 31 March 2018
and 2017. Details of share capital are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 March 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant
to a shareholders’ written resolution of the Company passed
on 15 September 2014. No options have been granted,
exercised or cancelled under the Scheme since its adoption up
to the date of this annual report.
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The purpose of the Scheme is to attract and retain personnels
to remain with the Group and to motivate them to optimise
their performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group by
providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests
in the Company. The Board may, at its discretion, grant
options pursuant to the Scheme to the directors (including
executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors), the directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries and employees of the Group and any other
persons (including consultants or advisers) whom the Board
considers, in its absolute discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

Total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to the Scheme and any other share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the shares in issue
on the Company’s listing date, i.e. 16 October 2014, being
40,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each on the listing date
(or equivalent to 160,000,000 shares of HK$0.0025 each
subsequent to share subdivision effective on 23 December
2015) (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”). The Company may
renew the Scheme Mandate Limit with shareholders’ approval
provided that each such renewal must not exceed 10% of
the shares in the Company in issue as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval.

The maximum number of shares underlying all outstanding
options which have been granted and have yet to be exercised
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company in the
manner as set out in the Scheme, the maximum number
of shares underlying the options granted to each eligible
participant (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1.0% of the shares in issue for the time being.

The period during which an option may be exercised by
a grantee (the “Option Period”) shall be the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to the grantee at the time
of making an offer, which shall not expire later than 10 years
from the offer date.
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Subject to any restrictions applicable under the Listing Rules, an
option may be exercised in whole or in part by the grantee at any
time during the Option Period in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme and the terms on which the option was granted.

The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 upon acceptance of an offer of
an option.

The exercise price shall be determined by the Board but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the offer date, which must be a trading day;
(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; or (c) the nominal value
of the shares on the offer date of the relevant option.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after
the date of adoption.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Lau Chun Ming (Chairman)

Mr. Lau Chun Kwok (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Ka

Ms. Leung Lai So

Independent non-executive directors

Professor Wong Sue Cheun, Roderick
Mr. Chu Tak Sum
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold

In accordance with article 84 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Lau Chun Ka, Ms Leung Lai So and Mr. Chu
Tak Sum will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered all of the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
any member of the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’/CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP’S
BUSINESS

Save for disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company’s
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies was a
party and in which a director or controlling shareholders of the
Company and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management
are set out on pages 54 to 57.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of
directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO, or as notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, are as follows:

(@) Directors’ interest in the Company:

Number of ordinary shares
of HK$0.0025 each held (long position)
S REE0.0025BTMEBRERE (F8)

Name of director

ESnE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming 1,200,000,000

SRR E

Ms. Leung Lai So 1,200,000,000

REEHIT
(b) Directors’ interest in associated corporations of the
Company:

Name of associated

Name of director ~ corporation

EEpg BB AR REE

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
BIRAEE 615

Mr. Lau Chun Ming  Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
SRR E 10,0008
Ms. Leung Lai So Actiease Assets Limited 61 shares
REHLL 61

Ms. Leung Lai So Silver Bright Holdings Limited 10,000 shares
RBHLL 10,0008%
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So far as the directors are aware, as at 31 March 2018 the
interest and short positions of the persons, other than a director

or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to

be kept under section 336 of the SFO are as follows:

(c) Substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in

the Company

Name of shareholder

EEEE

Actiease Assets Limited

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.0025 each held

P8 IR E{E0.00257% T K9
EBEREA

Long position 1,200,000,000

##21,200,000,000/%

Silver Bright Holdings Limited Long position 1,200,000,000

##21,200,000,0004%

Managecorp Limited
as trustee of a unit trust

(EREMEENZTEA)

Long position 1,200,000,000
#F21,200,000,0004%

First Names (NTC) Trustees Asia
Limited (formerly known as
Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited)
(A1 F&Nautilus Trustees Asia
Limited )

Long position 1,200,000,000
#%£1,200,000,000/%

Notes:

1. 1,200,000,000 shares were held by Actiease Assets
Limited, a company wholly owned by Silver Bright Holdings
Limited which is indirectly owned by a discretionary trust of
which Ms. Leung Lai So is the beneficiary.

2 Silver Bright Holdings Limited is 100% held by
Managecorp Limited as trustee of a unit trust, of which
issued units are 100% held by First Names (NTC) Trustees
Asia Limited (formerly known as Nautilus Trustees Asia
Limited) as trustee of a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. Lau Chun Ming.
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BB P2018FE3A31H * LT A
T (PBEARBEERETETHAE)R
RARRGD RABBEIRG P HEEREFESK
HAE 403361 A T HFEMERMATR
BRERRAR

© EERENEAAGEEIAR

Percentage of

shareholding Capacity
ERBESL 5%

71.43% Beneficial owner
E=BEBA

71.43% Interest of a controlled

corporation

XEHLEE MR

71.43% Trustee
A

71.43% Trustee
EEA

it -

1. 1,200,000,0008% P& 1 HSilver
Bright Holdings Limited® &
% B ) 2 TlActiease Assets
LimitedFf #5 & + i Silver Bright
Holdings Limited A & % 25 A B2
EBHztr 2 REtHERES -

2. Silver Bright Holdings Limited &
% {7 {5 5F M) % 3¢ AManagecorp
Limited 100% & M
Managecorp Limitedf &£ 17
B {7 B BFirst Names (NTQ)
Trustees Asia Limited (F7 78
Nautilus Trustees Asia Limited)
ERRIIRAA L ER U BT
X FEA100%F A °
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The controlling shareholders have confirmed to the Company
of their compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
dated 15 September 2014.

In addition, the Company requested and obtained the
information of the companies owned by the controlling
shareholders of the Company. The independent non-executive
directors, based on their review of the confirmation, noted that
no engagement in competing business had been reported by
the controlling shareholder of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2018; and there was no particular situation
rendering the full compliance of the undertakings being
questionable.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 100% (2017: 100%) of
the Group’s total turnover. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 81% (2017: 49%) of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 94% (2017: 90%) of
the Group’s total purchases. The largest supplier accounted
for approximately 75% (2017: 60%) of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the directors, none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in these major
suppliers or customers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year set out in note 26 to the financial
statements included transactions that constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions for which the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied with.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group had the
following continuing connected transactions:

Tenancy Agreements

Name of landlords Term of lease agreements

EEoy HE & & Y

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

BEBALXRS

AEBRAFEITINBEARBRIZER
AR RAR 126 - BIEBKEEFER
BRGNP MAKBERZERHE
ST ETAR AR FEARE

RFEBREXS

REZE2018FE3A31H IEFE » REEH
SEBEISIT ¢

THE
Monthly rent Annual rent
sAHEE BFHE
(HKS) (HKS)
(BTT) (B T)

Leasing of storage property for use as open storage and service depot for the Group

HEERYELRAEREENERERRELS
Cheer Crown Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
ZEERAA 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

180,000 2,160,000

Leasing of residential properties and car parking spaces for use as quarter for the directors

HEFEYEREFENUREESNEAR

Cheer Wealth International 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
Development Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

ERBRERBR AR

East Ascent Enterprises Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020

RAGEBR AR 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017
Cheer Profit International 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
Enterprise Limited 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

ENERERARE A

Long Ascent Development Limited 1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
RAERAR A A 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

Healthy World Investment Limited  1/8/2017 ~ 31/7/2020
f2fES & R AR 1/8/2014 ~ 31/7/2017

Total transaction amounts for the year ended 31 March 2018
BZE2018F3A1 AL FENR 5 H%E

Annual cap FELR
For the year ended 31 March 2018  #Z2018E3A31 B ILEE

66

73,000 876,000
3,800 45,600
3,800 45,600

50,000 600,000

50,000 600,000

4,327,200
4,327,200
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The rents paid by the Group to the above landlords were
determined on an arm’s length basis and reflected the
prevailing market rents at the time. The relevant tenancy
agreements were also entered into by the parties on normal
commercial terms.

Relationships with Connected Persons

As Mr. Lau Chun Ming, Mr. Lau Chun Kwok, Mr. Lau Chun
Ka and Ms. Leung Lai So, each a director, and Ms. Lau Pui
Shan, a daughter of Mr. Lau Chun Ming and Ms. Leung Lai So,
owned the beneficial interests in the above landlords, each of
the landlords above was therefore considered as a connected
person of the Company and hence the transactions referred
above constituted continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Review of Continuing Connected Transactions

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive directors
of the Company who have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Company; (b) on normal commercial terms or
better; and (c) according to the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group on
pages 66 to 67 in this annual report in accordance with rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions that did not constitute connected transactions
made during the year is disclosed in note 26 to the financial
statements.

MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2018, the market capitalisation of the listed
securities of the Company was approximately HK$353 million
based on the total number of 1,680,000,000 issued shares of
the Company and the closing price of HK$0.21 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 March 2018 and as at the date of this
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Group
had complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
places where we operate in all material respects.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company’s Articles provides that every director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability

insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover for the directors.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the
Company or by the Group after 31 March 2018 and up to the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of

the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT3RS

s
pwc

To the Shareholders of Sam Woo Construction Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited
The consolidated financial statements of Sam Woo

Construction Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 183, which

comprise:
° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2018;
° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

QOur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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B AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as

MEETER(E)

BFIEFE PR R E S A

follows: S ¢

. Accounting for construction contracts - estimated costs e BEAANNGFEIE - Het AR
and profit recognition & FIFERR

) Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and o WAk N 7R BY (i 51 AT {8 A 4 A K
equipment EREE

Key Audit Matter
BREITSE

Accounting for construction contracts -
estimated costs and profit recognition

Refer to note 2.11 in the summary of significant
accounting policies and note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A2HERNGT BRI EM 2. 11 REE SRRt
FE5 ©

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group’s
entire gross profit of HK$44,045,000 was derived
from construction works.

B Z2018F3A31BLELFE - E5%
44,045,000/ 7L IR B LTI ©

= &5 E R

The recognition of costs and profit on construction
contracts is based on the stage of completion of
contract activity by reference to work performed
at balance sheet date as a percentage of the total
contract value.
BESNNKRRR T T2 EEHE B ETIEG
BEHEERDHIEERS QGBI T TRERER

72

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMNET A EEEARETSE

BESANSTEE -Gt RARERER

Our procedures in relation to management’s
accounting for percentage of completion of
construction work, estimated costs and profit
recognition of construction contracts included:
HERBHELSANBEIRTIADL « TR
NMOR MR RIE - KPS RDNHEFEEE

= We assessed and tested the key controls over
the project costs budgeting process.

= BAEAERAAEE XA BRERBRRTNETES
?‘u\. o

- We inspected material construction contracts
of the Group for agreed contract sum and
variations, if any.

= BAERREEENERRETIRES
HeBEREE (WF) -

KR RE

- We checked the stage of completion to the
external architects’ and quantity surveyors’
certificates; and tested the revenue recognition
based on percentage of completion and the
calculations of contract costs and gross profits.
%H/iﬁET%Léﬁ%lﬁ%ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁg\\ﬁﬁﬁi’fkﬁmﬁlﬂiﬁﬂ%Efﬁ
HH - WIRRT T A s B RIBCAR
MEMBFEETTRR

R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BREEITSE

Recognition of costs and profit on contracts
requires significant judgement and estimates of
budgeted gross profit as well as the expected
recovery of costs arising from additional work
performed throughout the contracts.

BRI BCAR Ko N B R 2 S TR B E N RFE AN BB
B KV I R ET TR AR 1 2 A MR AR e B U E 1T
BAHE R AET -

Costs and profit recognition requires significant
time and resources to audit due to the magnitude
as well as the judgement and estimates involved.
ERFTS R REEANI B A REFTER - B
REmAERE B ARERHRERETET °
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MREEFEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN ETOMEEBAEETNSE

73

We examined management’s budget of the
cost component, such as costs of materials,
subcontracting fees and labour costs, etc. We
compared the budgeted component cost to
supporting documents including but not limited
to invoices, price quotation and rate of labour
costs.

HMEEREBEBHMHAER - DBBAKREH
FRANE R AR ER D M TEE o AP A% T8 & 48 A 5P
DK AREEFXHEELY - EREEETR
RER - BFEBRBBEXNER -

We compared by cost component of the
actual cost incurred up to year end to the
budgeted cost and obtained explanation from
management for any material variation.
BB AERBOBEFRELNER S
HERESHEEELY  YHERNEREZERAE
B ERSREREGIEA o

We compared the historical actual gross profit
margin to those budgeted to assess the quality
of management budgetary process.
BMELBBREEREMNKEBEEENE - LAY
HEREERENmE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETER

74

REETER(E)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMWET AR ERREETEE

- We discussed with the Group’s quantity
surveyors and project managers about the
status of the projects, to identify any variations
of contracts and claims, and to obtain
explanations for fluctuations in margins and
changes in budget as well as the expected
recovery of variations. We also inspected the
correspondence with customers and sub-
contractors and the minutes of management’s
regular internal meetings, on a sample basis, for
corroboration of their explanations.

— B2 &S E ) TEDR 26 &IA B 18 5 im 1A
B ABFIESEHNEERBR - W ba
TRy  REZFHRIEHETKEELHEERG
RESA - KM TERERRETFP RS BEZ
BRBEANREREABSZN SR8 - AE
BT EOE ©

- We assessed, on a sample basis, the
competence and independence of external
architects and quantity surveyors.

- A2 MR (4 SN 3B 22 S Rm K TRHRI R0 2 B8
AEERVA

We found the judgement and estimates adopted
by management in determining the estimated costs
and profit recognition of construction contracts are
supported by available evidence.

PLE IR B T RS A WO R (AT A AN St ) i R s T R
R LR fhat o m > RALBEZRETAEKX

Al RE e
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BERETER

Estimated useful lives and residual values of
plant and equipment

Refer to note 2.5 in the summary of significant
accounting policies, note 4(a) in the critical
accounting estimates and judgements and note 13
to the consolidated financial statements.
B2HERGTBRBENT2.6 - FaMBHmRN
4 EEZ G AHAET R AE A RMIEE13 o

As at 31 March 2018, there was plant and
equipment of HK$575,752,000. For the year ended
31 March 2018, depreciation of HK$26,971,000
was recognised.

R2018%F3HA31H » #i kR /575,752,000
I BE2018F3A3THILEFE  EHRITE
26,971,000/ 7T °

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the industry
practice, expected usage of the assets, expected
repair and maintenance, the technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in the market. Residual values of the
machinery and equipment are determined based on
prevailing market values for equivalent aged assets
taking into account the condition of the relevant
assets or the value of scrap metal. Depreciation
expense would be significantly affected by the
useful lives and residual values of the plant and
equipment as estimated by management.
EREDNSETREN BEESAR - BHEBK
RE - ATSE L E BB R EE S HBR
EETHE R R BRI A HA o A SRR B RO IER
BEIREARSRKEENRITHEEE - Witk
BB EWRSEEENEE - B2 EMEaHHEMRR
RENFEAFARNGEESETEERBEEAY
&,
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MREEFEEE)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KRNSO MR ERERE T SE

R RENETTERAFHRFGRER

Our procedures in relation to management’s estimated
useful lives and residual values of plant and equipment
included:
AREREEBHBM R RENGEAIERAFHLRRSREE -
BB HKBNEF B :

- We discussed with the management on trends
of prevailing market values for equivalent
aged assets for each category of plant and
equipment and the value of scrap metal at
year end. We performed research to verify the
management’s representation.

- B2 EE IR E SRR R AN R SRR
BEMNRITTEES REHNFERNEE - Ff
EETHRUZE TR ERM -

- We sample checked market quotations and
recent scrap metal price to assess whether
the residual value of each type of plants and
machineries are within reasonable range.

= F A2 WA E 5 (B KRR E AT B EAR AT
HEERB LR RBEORREEESIRHE -

- We reviewed the sensitivity analysis performed
by management on financial impact of
fluctuation on residual values to depreciation.

— HMEEHEREHFNMEERDETENTH
T EEITOBURME DT o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BREHEE(E)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BREITSE BPNES NN EEREETSE

Due to the significant judgement and estimates -
involved, specific audit focus was placed on this
area.

BT R AES REEE - et T maEst T
{E4E T RIER -

We assessed useful lives by benchmarking to
other industry players and performing research
on changes or improvements in the market
which could result in technical or commercial
obsolescence. Furthermore, we tested, on a
sample basis, usage and movement of the
assets among different construction projects
and expenditure of repair and maintenance.
BAT A E At 3 R B 2E K A T35 # b s e = E 3
B 52 9 S PR 3% o T B ARy S 1T R T 2R AT (A AT 2 AR A
H o B0 BRMEMEARATRRELEENEE
R REHAREERRENFAX °

We tested, on a sample basis, whether
additions to plant and equipment have been
recorded in proper categories with relevant
useful lives and residual values, for the
calculation of depreciation.

MEHRITE - RASHMEOANFH B RRENRE
ERCHNEENEM AL B F R REREER
pall [

We found the judgement and estimates in determining

the useful lives and residual values of plant and

equipment are supported by available evidence.
BMRE - RETEMERENRERFHARFRERE
I & AR B 2l B2 52 R SR8 1B S 5 A9 o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT3RS

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT REBMRETFREUERRARIENET
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (#&)
(Continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Independent Auditor’s Report
B BT3RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public/Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 June 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other gain/(loss), net

Other income
Administrative expenses

Operating profit
Finance income
Finance costs

Finance costs, net

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss

Fair value gains on available-for-sale
financial assets

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable
to equity holders of the Company

Basic and diluted earnings per share

meZHEBRER

For the year ended 31st March 2018 #Z201843A31H LEFE

WA
HHER AR

E7

Hitb iz,
(B18) — %8

H i A

TTBRX

A8 2k R
B H A
M%E R

MGER—F8

B P15 35 A g A
PS8 =

FE A

ARRAFREHERE A
FE 154 7

H 2w A
AEERBEEEF 7IHE
BomlBE
At ESREE
Z NP EKE

FREZEBVARE

ARBERFEA
EiE2ERAER

BREANETRAN

The notes on pages 86 to 183 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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2018 2017

Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B = FHET THEIT
5 518,479 817,682
7 (474,434) (672,457)
44,045 145,225

6 5,788 (1,120)
6 19,038 214
7 (61,405) (45,451)
7,466 98,868

8 2,637 2,677
8 (4,478) (10,330)
8 (1,841) (7,653)
5,625 91,215

9 (106) (12,235)
5,519 78,980

5,519 78,980

770 -

6,289 78,980

6,289 78,980

2018 2017

Note HK cents HK cents
B Bl B
11 0.33 4.70

FB86E183H < M it Bk SR A M WK < A
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SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet

HREEERER

As at 31st March 2018 72201843 HA31H

Assets

Non-current assets

Plant and equipment

Deferred income tax assets
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deposits and prepayments

Current assets

Trade and retention receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Amounts due from customers
for contract work

Income tax recoverable

Restricted bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

&E

FRBEE

W R
EEFEREE
AftHESREE
Be MIANKIEA

RBEE

R E ZHERRE S
we - BNRER

H b e Y 5k IH
RUEZEFPAEHNTIRESR

QLT

SR BRI TAERR
ReMREEFEEY

aEAME
B
PR
fré

R

The notes on pages 86 to 183 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Note
(=2

13
19
14
15

15

15

16

17
17

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FAET
575,752 633,527
9,208 917
20,520 19,750
2,905 765
608,385 654,959
121,261 157,450
3,905 6,226
231 18,614
600 18
3,020 20,864
256,401 347,943
,,,,,,, 385,418 991,115
993,803 1,206,074
4,200 4,200
681,520 692,031
685,720 696,231

EBBE1B3E Z MR Fiie M B MK 24
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Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Deferred income tax liabilities
Amount due to a director

Current liabilities

Trade and retention payables

Accruals and other payables

Amounts due to customers for
contract work

Borrowings

Income tax payable

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

=MEEEEARLF

Consolidated Balance Sheet

mEEERER

As at 31st March 2018 /20183 H31H

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FTHT THET
aE
ERBERE
RHEIER 22 15,904 53,120
RIEFMSHAE 19 59,357 53,453
BN —RESEHA 21, 26(d) 3,020 20,864
78,281 127,437
REEE
JENE ZHIBRRE & 20 53,432 79,534
FEETFRIB & H b fE {5 508 20 8,943 13,969
ENEFPEHTRSE
16 97,866 82,707
& 22 65,207 198,621
AT TR 4,354 7,575
229,802 382,406
aER® 308,083 = 509,843
EEkaEHAE 993,803 1,206,074

The financial statements on pages 81 to 183 were approved by F81E 1838 2 U % ¥R 3k E. 1R201846 A
the Board of Directors on 26 June 2018 and were signed on its C6HEES=SHE - WA NIALTRES

behalf. 2,
Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
2lixA REH
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 86 to 183 are an integral part of these F8E183H M AL SHRAMERER 2 E
consolidated financial statements. AEBS o
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5,519 5,519
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Interest received

Interest element of finance lease payments

Restricted bank balances
Hong Kong profits tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of available for sales investment

Purchase of plant and equipment

Proceeds from sales of plant and equipment

Decrease in short-term bank deposits

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing

activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital element of finance lease payments

Drawdown of long-term bank loans
Repayment of long-term bank loans
Drawdown of short-term bank loans
Repayment of short-term bank loans
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year

The notes on pages 86 to 183 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

RERERER

For the year ended 31st March 2018 #Z201843A31H LEFE

Note
B eE
REKE TR
HeRhE
RETEAMEHR ST 25(a)
BERFHE
BUHE
BEEEMN KA
FMEEH 8
R FIERIT A8 17

BENEENEHR

REZDFRBRASFE

REBREFHH

BERE
WA A 14
FE B KRB
HEER LR ED

FT1S 3R 25(b)
KERITERRD

REEDHME/
(FrA) REFHE

REMEZHHN
RERE
BEHENTM
BEAED
RREHRTER
EERBRITEN
REEHRITER
EEEHRITEN
ENBE

MEZBFFARESFE

RERBEEEY
(B4) g mEeE

RENHRER
ReFEY

REKANESRES
£EY 17
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2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHETT
56,886 313,230
(2,783) (6,173)
2,637 2,677
(1,532) (3,852)
17,844 (305)
(6,297) (10,645)
66,755 294,932
- (19,750)
(1,157) (53,454)
37,749 28
- 17,797
36,592 (65,379
(24,936) (60,868)
559 30,585
(38,386) (107,857)
36,628 204,916
(151,954) (103,643)
(16,800) (37,800)
,,,,, (194,889) | (74,667)
(91,542) 164,886
347,943 183,057
256,401 347,943
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SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sam Woo Construction Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in foundation works and ancillary services in
Hong Kong and Macau.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Continued)

BEREHBEBEE)

21 IRBIEE(E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by
the Group

The following new standard and
amendments to standards are mandatory
for the Group’s financial year beginning 1
April 2017 and have been adopted by the

Group:

HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
(Amendment)

HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
(Amendment) Assets for Unrealised Losses

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other
(Amendment) Entities

The adoption of these new standard
and amendments to standards does not
have any significant impact to the results
and financial position of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted

The following new standards and
amendments have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning on
or after 1 April 2017 and have not been
early adopted:

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle @

Amendments o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle @

HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Assciates
(Amendment) and Joint Venetures @

HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property
(Amendment)

HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
(Amendment) of Share-based Payment

Transactions (!

HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial

(Amendment) Instruments with HKFRS 4

[nsurance Contracts ©

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments !

HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
(Amendment) Compensation @

HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
(Amendments) Associate and Joint Venture
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
HKFRS 15 (Amendment) Clarifications to HKFRS 15 ("

HKFRS 16 Leases @
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts ©
HK (IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration )

HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments @

M Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

©) Effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021

@ Effective date to be determined

® Effective for the accounting period beginning on
or after 1 January 2018 or when the Group first
applies HKFRS 9

Management is in the process of making
an assessment on the impact of these new
and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations. Other than HKFRS 9, HKFRS 15
and HKFRS 16 which may have an impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Group do not anticipate that the
application of the other new and amendments to
HKFRS will have material impact on the results
and financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

The new standard addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

The Group has undertaken a detailed assessment
of the classification and measurement of financial
assets and does not consider the new guidance
to have a significant impact on the classification
and measurement of its financial assets. The
financial assets currently held by the Group
include equity instruments currently classified as
available-for—sale financial asset, which would
continue to be measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”). However,
gains or losses realised on the sale of financial
assets at FVOCI will no longer be transferred to
the consolidated income statement on sale, but
instead reclassified below the line from the FVOCI
reserve to retained earnings.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new
guidance to have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

There will be no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss and the Group does not
have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules
have been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and
have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based
on expected credit losses rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS
39. It applies to financial assets classified at
amortized cost, debt instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income,
contract assets under HKFRS 15 Revenue from
contracts with customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. Management considered there would
be no material impacts to the Group in this
regard.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures
about its financial instruments particularly in the

year of the adoption of the new standard.

HKFRS 9 must be applied for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2018. Based
on the transitional provisions in the completed
HKFRS 9, early adoption in phases was only
permitted for annual reporting periods beginning
before 1 February 2015. After that date, the
new rules must be adopted in their entirety. The
Group does not intend to adopt HKFRS 9 before

its mandatory date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18 which covers
contracts for goods and services and HKAS 11
which covers construction contracts and the
related literature. The new standard is based
on the principle that revenue is recognised
when control of a good or service transfers
to a customer. The standard permits either a
full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach for the adoption. Management has
assessed the effects of applying the new
standard on the Group’s financial statements
and has identified the following areas that will be
affected:
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group has assessed that its
contracts with customers fulfil the
criteria for recognising revenue over
time under HKFRS 15. In measuring the
work progress under the new revenue
standard, the Group expects to apply an
output method with reference to progress
certificates issued by the customers with
additional adjustments where necessary
to depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of goods or services
promised to customers for individual
projects. So far as the measurement of
progress of the Group’s typical contracts
is concerned, the Group expects that
there would not be any significant impact
on the revenue recognition profile.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

° Timing of recognition of contract costs

Under HKFRS 15, if the costs incurred
in fulfilling a contract with a customer
are not within the scope of another
standard, assets shall only be recognised
if the costs incurred (i) relate directly to a
contract or an anticipated contract that
can be specifically identified; (i) generate
or enhance resources of the entity that
will be used in satisfying performance
obligations in the future; and (iii) are
expected to be recovered. Costs that
relate to satisfied performance obligations
(or partially satisfied performance
obligations) in the contracts and costs for
which an entity cannot distinguish whether
the costs relate to unsatisfied performance
obligations or to satisfied performance
obligations shall be expensed as incurred
under HKFRS 15.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

o Timing of recognition of contract costs
(Continued)

Currently, contract costs of the Group
are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract, which is
measured by reference to the percentage
of the estimated total revenue for the
contracts entered into by the Group that
have been performed to date. Under
HKFRS 15, costs incurred at the initial
stage that generate or enhance resources
to be utilised subsequently in fulfilling the
performance obligation will be recognised
as contract assets to be amortised on a
systematic basis with the transfer to the
customer of the services to which assets
relates, while contract costs that related
to satisfy performance obligations are
expensed as incurred.

The Group intends to adopt the standard for
all uncompleted contracts as at 1 April 2018
using the modified retrospective approach which
means that the cumulative impact of the adoption
will be recognised in the retained earnings as of
1 April 2018 and that comparatives will not be
restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Based on the preliminary assessment, the
continual use of output method under HKFRS
15 in measuring the percentage of completion is
not expected to significantly affect the timing and
amount of revenue recognition upon adoption.
On the other hand, HKFRS 15 includes contract
cost guidance that could result in a change in the
measurement and recognition of contract costs
as compared to the accounting policy currently
adopted by the Group. For the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract with a customer
and the cost related directly to a contract or an
anticipated contract, such as set up costs, that
generate or enhance resources to fulfill the future
performance, the Group shall recognise this as
an asset and amortise such asset over the period
of contract performance. The Group will no
longer be able to defer costs if the performance
obligation qualifies for over-time recognition
unless such costs qualify for capitalisation based
on either the costs to obtain or costs to fulfill the
contract guidance, meaning costs relating to the
satisfied performance obligation will be expensed
as incurred. Contract costs are recognised as
expenses by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract activity in accordance to the
current standard while costs incurred in satisfying
a performance obligation are charged to expense
as incurred under HKFRS 15.

Since the Group will continue to use output
method to measure progress, which is other
than cost-to-cost method, this will likely result
in uneven margins in individual reporting periods
over the life of the contract. The Group is not yet
in a position to provide quantified information and
the new standard is not expected to apply until
the financial year ending 31 March 2019.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being
recognised on the consolidated balance sheet,
as the distinction between operating and finance
leases is removed. Under the new standard, an
asset (the right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are recognised.
The only exceptions are short-term and low-value
leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for Group’s operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$14,792,000, see note
23(b). Directors do not foresee any material
impact on the net profit of the Group as a result
of adoption of HKFRS 16.

Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low value
leases and some commitments may relate to
arrangements that will not qualify as leases under
HKFRS 16.

The new standard is mandatory for financial years
commencing on or after 1 January 2019. At this
stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the
standard before its effective date.
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e MR M
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBERBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation 22 MWEBAF

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(note 2.2.2).

Intercompany transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation (Continued)

2.2.2 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless
of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business, the equity interests issued
by the group, the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, and the fair value of any pre-

existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate
share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable

assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation (Continued) 22 MEBRAE)

2.2.2 Business combinations (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those
amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase.

2.2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving a dividend
from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary
in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

(a)

®)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation
Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or
loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of hyper-
inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

= assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing exchange rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each statement

2.4
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5  Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of

the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the profit or loss during the financial period in

which they are incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual
values over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end

of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHERBE(F)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.5  Plant and equipment (Continued) 25 MW KRREE)
An asset’'s carrying amount is written down MEEZERmMEBBE G
immediately to its recoverable amount of the AU Ol %8 - BIEZEE 2 BR
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its T & B RS SOk &= & AT Uk Bl &
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.6). % (fi5E2.6) ©
Gains or losses on disposals are determined by HEMEEFBREEBR
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and P15 FRI8 ER AR TH B B bL B2 /e
are recognised in the consolidated statement of E o WREREZEWRERA
comprehensive income. TER o
2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets 26 FemEEMRME

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Financial assets

2.7.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the

following categories: loans and receivables, and

available for sale. The classification depends

on the purpose for which the financial assets

were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial

recognition.

(@

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current
assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more
than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period. These are classified
as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade
and retention receivables”, “deposits
and other receivables” (note 2.10),
“restricted bank balances”, and “cash
and cash equivalents” (noted 2.12) in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Financial assets (Continued)
2.7.1 Classification (Continued)
(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in
this category or not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in
non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end
of the reporting period.

2.7.2 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Financial assets (Continued)
2.7.2 Recognition and measurement (Continued)

At initial recognition, the group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently carried at fair value. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7.3 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the balance sheet where
the Group currently has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts, and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The Group has also entered into arrangements
that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but
still allow for the related amounts to be set off in
certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the
termination of a contract.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EREHBERBEE)
POLICIES (Continued)
2.8  Impairment of financial assets 28 SRIEERIE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered an
indicator that the assets are impaired.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment

loss is recognised in profit or loss.

(b) Assets classified as available for sale

If there is objective evidence of impairment for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that
were recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss in a subsequent period.

If the fair value of a debt instrument classified
as available-for-sale increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment

loss is reversed through profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Leased assets

The Group leases certain machinery and
equipment. Leases of machinery and equipment
where the Group has substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership, are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease’s commencement at the lower of the
fair value of the leased machinery and equipment
and the present value of the minimum lease
payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance charges so as to achieve a
constant rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in other short-
term and other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The machinery and equipment acquired under
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of
the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment. See note
2.7.1(a) for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and note 2.8(a)
for a description of the Group’s impairment

policies.

2.11 Construction contracts

A construction contract is defined by HKAS 11
Construction contracts, as a contract specifically
negotiated for the construction of an asset.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be estimated reliably and it is probable that
the contract will be profitable, contract revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the stage of completion. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses by reference
to the stage of completion of the contract activity
at the end of the reporting period. When it is
probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

When the outcome of a construction contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised only to the extent of contract costs

incurred that are likely to be recoverable.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

Construction contracts (Continued)

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue to
the extent that may have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage-of-completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount
of revenue to recognise in a given period. The
stage of completion is measured by reference to
work performed to date as a percentage of total
contract value.

On the consolidated balance sheet, the
Group reports the net contract position for
each contract as either an asset or a liability.
A contract represents an asset where costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings; a contract
represents a liability where the opposite is the
case.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturity of
three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the

issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest

method.

2.15 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest

method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of

the facility to which it relates.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
balance sheet when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are charged to the profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

217

2.18

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the year
is the tax payable on the current year’s taxable
income based on the applicable income tax
rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in' which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.18 BNEAREIEFTSH (&)

(ii) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income
tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the
end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

=

(i)  BEEEH

ELEMEHREMARBELRE
ENBENRERENGS
MBHBEROERELHNE
R s E BRI E - A
i EE T IR B (E B 15 R
BEELATE T AR -
HELMEHDELEBER S
(XA PEERIN) 1N 7R
MEEXRE BHRSE
IR B0 & 51 K BR 5 s M) S
BYEZE TIEAK-
BELEMGHRILRBEREHR
ERMAEREM - LTEH
RBEBREMSHEEZR
HEEFFEHARBERE
RrB R (FAP) BRE °

BEXERBEEEERRSH
&R & BRIAT A B
EREMEBET T AER -



SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR R M

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the
deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation
authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable
right to offset and intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19

2.20

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair values where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s activities. The Group recognises
revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and
specific criteria have been met. Revenue is
shown net of discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group.

Revenue from construction contracts is
recognised based on the stage of completion of
the contracts as detailed in note 2.11 above.

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans and
receivables is recognised using the original
effective interest rate.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group operates defined contribution plans
and pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.
The Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expenses when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate
the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than twelve
months after balance sheet date are discounted
to present value.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessors are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessors) are
charged to the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28

2.24

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
Company’s financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group.
It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is
not probable that outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow
is probable, they will then be recognised as a
provision.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety
of financial risk: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the
unpredictability of the financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company. The
Directors provide principles for an overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific
areas.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets
and liabilities which are denominated in a
currency that is not the Company’s functional
currency.

The Group’s transactions are mainly
denominated in HK$ and Macao Patacas
(“MOP”). The majority of assets and liabilities are
denominated in HK$, MOP and Euro (“EUR"),
and there are no significant assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies. Management
considered that the foreign exchange risk for
MOP is minimal since exchange rate fluctuation
was minimal.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2017: 5%) against EUR with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s
net assets at the year end and profits for the
year would have been HK$1,453,000 (2017:
HK$2,847,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of foreign currency gains/losses on
translation of the bank borrowings dominated in
EUR.

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly
attributable to its cash and bank balances and
borrowings. Except for borrowings with variable
interest, the Group has no other significant
interest-bearing liabilities. Borrowings at variable
interest rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. Cash and bank balances at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group has not used any interest
rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, if the interest rates
on borrowings had been 100 basis-points
higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year would
be HK$702,000 (2017: HK$2,276,000)
lower/higher mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expense on floating rate
borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and cash equivalents, short-term
deposits, restricted bank balances, trade and
retention receivables and deposits and other
receivables. The Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk is the carrying amounts of these

financial assets.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, 100% (2017:
97%) of the Group’s revenue was derived from its
top five (2017: two) customers. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had concentration of credit risk
as 100% (2017: 100%) of the trade receivables
were due from the Group’s four (2017: three)
customers.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

To manage this risk, management has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
management reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade and retention
receivable to ensure that adequate impairment
provision is made for the irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound credit
ratings.

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity
will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or another financial assets.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of
sources including orderly realisation of short-term
financial assets, receivables and certain assets
that the Group considers appropriate and long
term financing including long-term borrowings
are also considered by the Group in its capital
structuring. The Group aims to maintain flexibility
in funding by keeping sufficient bank balances
and interest bearing borrowings which enable
the Group to continue its business for the
foreseeable future.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEERERE (&)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 WERBREZEE)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet date
to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interests
payments computed using contractual rates, or
if floating, based on the current rates at the year
end date). Where the loan agreement contains
a repayable on demand clause which gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loan at
any time, the amounts repayable are classified
in the earliest time bracket in which the lender
could demand repayment. The maturity analysis
for other borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the
impact of discounting is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MERRER (&)
3.1  Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HHREBREXRE)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) () HEBELEE ()
On
demand

and less Between Between
than 1 1and 2 3 and 5
year years years Total
RER R
PR—F —EmMF =FERF HBEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKE$ 000
FHETT T FHET FHET

As at 31 March 2017 R2017£F

3A31H
Trade and retention payables 2 5 3KIR

MRE 79,534 - - 79,534
Accruals and other payables EstmE M HE

b FE < 5/ IR 12,973 - - 12,978
Amount due to a director ER—%

BEENIA - - 21,849 21,849
Long-term bank loans RERITE N 38,277 20,041 7,419 65,737
Short-term bank loans REARITEF 137,250 - - 137,250
Obligations under MEMEST

finance leases 26,396 17,797 9,296 53,489

294,430 37,838 38,664 370,832
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
equity and borrowings. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce borrowings. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The
gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposit and restricted bank

3
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balances pledged for security of the borrowings. FIERI TR ETE - BEBBL
The gearing ratios were as follows: RO ¢
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Borrowings (including obligations under &3 (BiEFIEHE
finance leases) (note 22) E1E) (Biazz2) 81,111 251,741
Less: cash and cash equivalents B IReERREEFEEY (256,401) (847,943)
Net cash e FEE (175,290) (96,202)
Total equity % L] 685,720 696,231
Gearing ratio BEBRE N/ATE A N/AZ i
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEERERE (&)
3.3  Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEMEE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets (other than available-for-sale financial
assets) and financial liabilities, including cash
and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits,
restricted bank balances, trade and retention
receivables, deposits and other receivables,
trade and retention payables, other payables and
borrowings approximate their fair values, which
either due to their short-term maturities, or that
they are subject to floating rates.

The carrying amount of amount due to a director
was a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

The Group’s financial instruments are measured
in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised
into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as
follows:
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(@) Estimated useful lives and residual values of plant
and equipment

Management estimates useful lives of the plant
and equipment by reference to the Group’s
business model, its assets management policy,
the industry practice, expected usage of the
assets, expected repair and maintenance, the
technical or commercial obsolescence arising
from changes or improvements in the market.
Residual values of the machinery and equipment
are determined based on prevailing market
values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets or
the value of scrap metal and other economic
considerations. Depreciation expense would
be significantly affected by the useful lives and
residual values of the plant and equipment as
estimated by management.

If the residual values of plant and equipment
had further decreased by 10%, the depreciation
expenses would increase by HK$4,984,000
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017:
HK$2,795,000).
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EESHETT R UM (&)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(o)  Estimated impairment of plant and equipment (b) R ERENGERE
The Group’s major operating assets represent AREEBRFTELEEE K
machinery and equipment. Management ﬂz& 1 o A B3k

performs review for impairment of the plant
and equipment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts
of these assets may not be recoverable.

Management considered there was no
impairment indicator of machinery and equipment

IRECEPR TV
REETREENE - AJE
BERY RS EELTAE
S -

H A I N AR R R AT RR
BABEmRERE - A=F

during the year as these assets were used for MHENERES  EEER
profitable construction projects, and there is a o e R R E AR
strong demand of these plant and equipment in WERETR -
the second hand market.

(©) Impairment of trade and retention receivables () EREBZFFERRERE

Management determines the provision for
impairment of trade and retention receivables
based on the credit history of customers and
the current market condition by business
segment. Significant judgment is exercised on
the assessment of the collectability of receivables
from each customer. In making the judgment,
management considers a wide range of factors
such as results of follow-up procedures,
customer payment trends including subsequent
payments and customers’ financial positions.
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If the financial conditions of the customers of TElssE TRk Ee - B Al &k
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an TR NEE o X FEIR

impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required. The final
outcome of the recoverability of these receivables
will impact the amount of impairment required.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Construction contracts

The Group reviews and revises the estimates
of contract revenue, contract costs, variation
orders and contract claims prepared for each
construction contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted construction costs are prepared by
the management on the basis of quotations from
time to time provided by the major contractors,
suppliers or vendors involved and the experience
of the management. In order to keep the budget
accurate and up-to-date, management conducts
periodic reviews of the budgets of contracts by
comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred. Such significant estimate may
have impact on the profit recognised in each
period.

The Group recognised its contract revenue
according to the percentage of work performed
to date of the individual contract of construction
works as a percentage of total contract value.
Because of the nature of the activity undertaken
in construction contracts, the date at which the
contract activity is entered into and the date
when the activity is completed usually fall into
different accounting period. The Group reviews
and revised the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract
claims prepared for each construction contract
as the contract in progress. Management
regularly reviews the progress of the contracts
and the corresponding costs of the contract
revenue.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 EESHETT R UM (&)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in
Hong Kong and Macau. Significant judgement
is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in
the period in which such determination is made.
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e PR R M

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
gross contract receipts on foundation works and
ancillary services in the ordinary course of business.
Revenue recognised is as follows:

Foundation works and ancillary services b T 32 N B B AR 755

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The
executive directors regard the Group’s business as
one single operating segment and reviews financial
information accordingly.

(@) Segment information

The Group’s revenue from external customers
attributable to the countries in which the Group
derives revenue and information about its non-
current assets, excluding deferred income
tax assets and available-for-sale financial
assets, based on both the country of domicile
of companies holding these assets and their
physical location are detailed below:

Revenue from external customers

Hong Kong HE
Macau S P

136

BWAR 7 EHBER

WABEREXRBBRETHETE
KB AR TS AR & KUK - TRAAR
SERERE - BRNBAWT

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TERT TAT
518,479 817,682

ARAMBTESTRRESEER
BERRA - HITESHAKED
EBEon—EE—KLDH A
HEENMEER

(@) D EREFR

AEEKAIINPETEFIRAZ
BREFRBDEE (TEE
LS REERAHELE
TREE) D BEARB%RE
BEMNRAGZMAERR K
ZEBENERMEMER
BRI

Y =B/ 00N
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TET
518,479 810,683
- 6,999
518,479 817,682




“E-\FER

=MEEEEARLF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(@)

Segment information (Continued)

Non-current assets (excluding deferred income
tax assets and available-for-sale financial assets)

Based on country of domicile of companies
holding the assets and on physical location of the
assets:

Hong Kong BH

The machinery and equipment of the Group were
owned by Sam Woo Bore Pile Foundation Limited
(“*SWBP”) and Sam Woo Engineering Equipment
Limited (“SWEE”), the country of domicile of both
is Hong Kong.

Revenue derived from major customers:

There were one (2017: two) customers which
individually contributed over 10% of the
Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March
2018. The revenue from the one customer
amounted to HK$420,221,000 for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: each of the two
customers amounted to HK$401,107,000 and
HK$390,856,000 respectively).

ifm 7

e PR RRME

5 WARDEER (E)

DEREFL (&)

FERBEE (T ERFLLF
HEERARLESHEE)

REFEZFEEN QA
A EBER K EEBRMIE
E :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FTHET
578,657 634,292

ARER B A S R A R = AN
WEARAE ([=ZFE])
R=MEmAR LR (=
W) A - maxmE A R
MABBERARERS °

KEEEESHMA

#H E£20184F3A31H Lt
FE - — % (20175 - @
B)BFERBMAAEE
B A BRI IE10% o R
#H £20184F3H31H LEF
EREZBEFHKRAR
420,221,000/ 7t (2017
FREMBELSBHAWK
A5 5Bl £401,107,0007% 7T
%:.390,856,000/87C) °
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e I RAR M R

6 OTHER GAIN/(LOSS), NET, AND OTHER INCOME 6 Hiplhzz ~ (B18) - FEURH

2 i A
2018 2017
HK$’°000 HK$’000
TR FAT
Other gain/(loss), net Hinlkzs,~ (E518)
— R
Gain/(loss) on disposal of plant i B A N R Y
and equipment Izt (E18) 5,960 (19)
Write-off of plant and equipment LS A B AR (172) (1,101)
5,788 (1,120)
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
g TR FAT
Other income Hh A
Government grant BT ## B 162 214
Reimbursement from the deed BEBEZRESZ
by c= 7 e 1) B4 308 (T 3E16) 18,876 -
19,038 214
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 RUEEEIHAEX
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHTT
Cost of sales H & B AR
Construction contracts costs (note (a)) EEA IR (Kt @) 441,310 638,093
Depreciation e
— owned plant and equipment — BEEM LA 24,282 22,040
— leased plant and equipment —THE®WERE 2,140 2,715
Repair and maintenance HERRE 702 1,107
Others Hth 6,000 8,502
474,434 672,457
Administrative expenses T X
Staff costs, including directors’ BIXNAK(BIEES
emoluments (note (b)) <) (47 &) 15,372 14,055
Auditors’ remuneration % SLED B & 1,507 1,507
Depreciation e
- owned plant and equipment — BB RE 549 513
Operating lease rental in respect of ATEENZEHERS
— office and storage premises —MRERREME 10,363 8,334
— directors’ quarters (note 29(a)) —EEXZES
(Kt 5#29(a)) 2,167 2,167
Professional fees EXER 16,081 10,518
Motor vehicle expenses MERX 1,927 2,262
Bank charges RITH X 585 961
Exchange loss/(gain) bE & 1E S (Mas) 7,627 (981)
Others Hit 5,227 6,115
61,405 45,451
Total cost of sales and administrative i & B AR )2
expenses T 8 535,839 717,908

=36




SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued)

notes:

(@)

Construction contract costs included but are not
limited to costs of construction materials, staff costs
(refer to note (b) below), consultancy fee, parts
and consumables, subcontracting charges and

BEMER DR ()

Wit -

(@ BESHAKEABFEETRR
REMBIRA - BITRA (2
RTXME®p)  BERER -
THRERm 2 BERARE

transportation. BER -
Staff costs comprise: (b) BTIRABLE : 2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Wages and salaries TITENRT® 95,386 120,939
Pension costs — defined RIKES KA — EREM
contribution plans (note) et
(FfHE) 3,010 3,924
Employment benefits EE 1= 1,263 1,046
99,659 125,909
Less: amount included in construction B ETABRES KK
contracts costs or capitalized in RN ETIE
work-in-progress BN & E (84,287) (111,854)
15,372 14,055

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in accordance with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the
employer and its employees in Hong Kong are each
required to contribute 5% of the employees’ gross
earnings with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the
MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in an employee social
security plan (the “Social Security Plan”) and
contributes a fixed amount for each employee as
required by the regulations in Macau.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the

MPF Scheme and the Social Security Plan is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.

140

AEERBEESCAHIEARE
©ETEEDI) 2 B 5E F A
Besrgl ([REeED -
BIERTES T EIMRA] - B
EEREREESAIZRER
KU A H5%[) 58 FE & 51 &1 1
HER - 5 A LR A1,500%
=

REBTERPVERIRE H
BHaREESHEEHLERE
B (THeREE)) I
TR B E 2 BHK

AEERRESFERULE
REFTE WK -EERRE
AR EEHRER R -
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e PR RRME

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE (Continued) 7 BRUEBEDNEAX(F)
notes: (Continued) Kiat - (&)
(©) Five highest paid individuals (©) hEmmF AT
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the five individuals B E201843A31HILFE -
whose emoluments were the highest in the Group rEERZESFALDA
include three directors (2017: three) whose emoluments BE=Z(2017F : =&%) =
were reflected in the analysis presented in note 29(a). = HFEH 2 R K 5E29()
The emoluments paid to the remaining two individuals OB 2 - MESRHA
(2017: two) are as follows: (20175 : MB) AL ZHH
e -
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT
Salaries, other allowances and e AR REWET
benefits in kind 2,628 2,376
Bonus TE4L 194 182
Pension costs - defined RIS KA — E ARG &
contribution plans 36 38
2,858 2,596
The emoluments of these individuals fell within the ZEATHMEN FIATE
following bands: :

Number of individuals

A
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 21,500,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/8 75 22,000,000/ 7T 1 -
2 2
No emolument was paid by the Group to any of the REBHEREMESKA
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an ZEEF AT N ERBES
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as YE AN A ZN & [ 8 in A K &
compensation for the loss of office. B RS REE e BB (B o
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8

FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Finance income
— Interest income on bank deposits

Finance costs
— Interest expense on bank loans
— Interest expense on obligations
under finance leases
— Interest expense on amount due to
a director (note 26(b))

Finance costs, net

vl

-

8 Bt 3 W A R B AR

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET F#ET
BRI
— RITHFERHF B U A 2,637 2,677
B &
—IRITERFEFXT (2,783) (6,173)
—MEHRESETH
B (1,532) (3,852)
—EN—REEHE
B FI B RS
(H1:£26(b)) (163) (305)
(4,478) (10,330)
&R — 588 (1,841) (7,659)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Hong Kong profits tax
Current income tax
Under-provision of current income
tax in prior year
Deferred income tax (note 19)

Macau profits tax
Under-provision of current income
tax in prior year

BEBFISH
BREAFT1S B
RFEREFTBHD

BETRE

BIEFTSEE (H77E19)

RPIPTISR FE
EFRHMAEHRA
BETRE

Hong Kong profits tax and Macau complementary tax
have been provided at the rate of 16.5% and 12%,
respectively, on the estimated assessable profit for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: 16.5% and 12%).

e MR RRME

Fr8HpX

RiZE2HERERENAET S
BiE

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TAT
2,493 3,054

- 25

(2,387) 8,885

- 271

106 12,235

HE2018F3A31BILFE  EH
i 5T FE R B s F 9 Bl R16.5% &
12%7%1 K EHR BB TS B RORPIFT
SRR BE (201746 : 16.5% %
12%) ©
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9 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9 FriEsimk (&)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs R & B bR BT 1S H4 Al i A1) A £ 58 B2 BR
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the AEARERAENIERHENER
tax rate of Hong Kong as follows: N
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Profit before income tax B P15 756 A s A 5,625 91,215
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% 1216.5% M R ERFIE 928 15,050
Tax effects of: AT EBENHGETE
Tax rates of overseas operation B INFETS HY B R (29) 86
Income not subject to tax B AR BA (1,354) (3,618)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes N A] FIHL R 2 688 6
Tax losses for which no deferred I B REREE FTIS R
income tax asset was recognised BEMNTIBEIE 19 455
Utilisation of previously unrecognised ) F DA I R 7SR
tax losses IR Es1a (86) -
Under-provision of income tax in EFEMSHNBETR
prior year - 296
Tax concessions TRIE R % (60) (40)
Income tax expense FriSHi < 106 12,235
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e MR RRME

DIVIDENDS 10 % E
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Interim dividend paid of HK nil cent BBk KRN E R ERE
(2017: HKO.5 cents) per ordinary SRR E RN
share declared and paid (note (a)) (20174 : 0.55811)
(Kizt(a) - 8,400
Final dividend proposed of HK nil cent EHEAHARBEEK
(2017: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share TR T AL
(note (b)) (20174 : 1.0/8{L)
(K1t (b)) - 16,800
- 25,200
notes: B1aE -
(a) The Board resolved not to declare interim dividend for (a) EEeFZRAKEETTRT
the year (2017: HKO.5 cents). HRE B (20174 : 0.5/8{L) -
(b) The board resolved not to propose final dividend for the (b) EEeRARARNIERREASE
year at the forthcoming annual general meeting. RE FTEZREREER
BARR S o
A dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March 2017 RNEEBEIRNMNEZEZ2017E

of HK 1.0 cent per share, amounting to a total dividend
of HK$16,800,000 was paid during the year.

SABIHLEFEREER
1.0 - & HEBKRBERBRE
16,800,000/ TT °
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11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 BRER
(a) Basic (a) E=iN
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing FAREAREF TR EARA A7)
the profit attributable to equity holders of the A ATE(E A B LA FE
Company by the weighted average number of AFE B BT LA ngEFE
ordinary shares in issue during the respective YT E o
years.
2018 2017

Profit attributable to equity holders RARERFER A

of the Company (HK$’000) A (TE7T) 5,519 78,980
Weighted average number of STEFREARZFIR LR

ordinary shares for the purpose of A pnfE e (FAR)

calculating basic earnings

per share (thousands) 1,680,000 1,680,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &AREARRF] (B(L) 0.33 4.70

(b)  Diluted (b) #EH

Diluted earnings per share is of the same amount BRESRTNEGRERR
as the basic earnings per share as there were no FIAEE (20174 : 48R -+ 1t
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at ThE PR G AR I B R 1T (R &
the year end (2017: same). TS LR -
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- N\FER

12 SUBSIDIARIES
Name
a8

Directly held by the Company:

HARRERRE

Sam Woo Group Limited

Capital Plus Group Limited

Indirectly held by the
Company:

HARRABERE

Sam Woo Bore Pile
Foundation Limited

=M EERAT]

Sam Woo Construction &

Engineering Limited

ZAESHERER AT

Sam Woo Engineering
Equipment Limited

=MERBRAR

Sam Woo Foundation
Limited

Sam Wooltt E& R A7)

Place of
incorporation

AR S 1t 2

British Virgin Islands
RBRUES

British Virgin Islands
RBRUES

Hong Kong

30

Hong Kong

&

Hong Kong

80

Macau

AP

Issued and
fully paid
share capital

ERTRAZRA

US$10,000
10,000%7T

Us$2
2%TL

HK$10,000,000

10,000,000/87C

HK$100,000

100,000 7

HK$500,000

500,000/ 7

MOP30,000

R P130,000

147

12 HMELF

Effective interest

held as at
FBERER
2018 2017
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXBREBHE

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRR
AN B RS

Trading of and leasing
of machinery and
equipment in Hong
Kong

RERRE LSRR LR

Leasing of machinery
and equipment in Hong
Kong

WEBRERALRE

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Macau

NRFIETHETER
R EtHE RS
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12

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

2R

Indirectly held by the Company

(Continued):
HAARBESSE : (#)

Sam Woo Construction
Limited

“MEEERAA

Sam Woo Civil Contractors
Limited

=MEARTIRERAHA

Sam Woo Civil Works Limited
ZHIARERAHE

Sam Woo Foundation
Limited

S ETEERAR

Sam Woo Finance Limited

=NABERA A

Sam Woo Offshore
Engineering Limited
=MBFTIRERAR

Place of
incorporation

AR L 0 3

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

&b

Hong Kong

BB

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEXBREBHE

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETIER
FRA O PR S

Inactive

EEE

n

Inactive
Tmex

Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong

REBETHETRER
HRALR B AR 7S

Provision of financial
services to group
companies

AEERARE S BRS

Inactive

12 MELR(E)

Issued and
fully paid Effective interest
share capital held as at
BERTRAZRE FisBRER

2018 2017
HK$10,000 100% 100%
10,0007 7T
HK$10,000 100% 100%
10,0007 7T
HK$2 100% 100%
28T
HK$2 100% 100%
28T
HK$2 100% 100%
28T
HK$1 100% 100%
15T

148
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12  SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 MKEAE(E)
Issued and
Place of fully paid Effective interest Principal activities
Name incorporation share capital held as at and place of operation
£ R B L 4 2 ERTRARKRE FrisERER TEXBREENH
2018 2017

Indirectly held by the Company
(Continued):
HANRBERE © (&)

Sam Woo Asia Development Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
Group Limited
SAENEREEERAR £ 1T TEEHB
Sam Woo Foundation Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
Group Limited
SHHASEERAR £ iy TR
Redland Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Foundation works and
ancillary services in
Hong Kong
PEEEBRAT £ 28T REBETHETIRR

AL B ARTS




630,618
327
(172)
(31,789)
(25,930)

633,527
1,157
(172)
(31,789)
(26,971)

573,054 575,752

804,783 1,287
(231,729) (977)

9,380 815,450
(6,992) (239,698)

573,054 575,752
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PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13

(a) The net book amount of plant and equipment
held under finance lease obligations comprises
(note 22(e)):

Cost - Capitalised finance leases A —-BETELRN
MEMEE

Accumulated depreciation 25 E
Net book amount IREDFE

(b) As at 31 March 2018, plant and equipment
amounting to HK$116,969,000 (2017:
HK$123,233,000) were secured for the Group’s
bank borrowings (note 22(f)(ii)).

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 14
Opening amount FYeH

Addition NE

Fair value gain A ERE
Closing amount FREHE

Available-for-sale financial assets are unlisted equity
securities in Hong Kong.

151

e PR RRME

W R (E)

@ RENREHEEEHANE
MEREBOREFEERE

(P 3E22(e)) :
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FHET FAETT
89,706 130,964
(5,997) (7,164)
83,709 123,800

(b) HM2018%3H31H ' &
#116,969,0007% T (2017
F 1 123,233,000/ 7T ) K
W R EREREBRTHE
SRR (BT 5E22(f)(ii)) °

THEEEREE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
19,750 —
- 19,750
770 -
20,520 19,750

AL ERRAEBRESZ I L
A K o
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14

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

On 29 March 2017, the Group acquired 5% of
issued capital of Gold Champion Enterprises Limited
(“Gold Champion”). The acquisition is accounted for
as available-for-sale financial assets (note 26(b)(iv)).
Gold Champion is principally engaged in investment
properties holding.

None of the financial assets is impaired.

Management considered the fair value of the unlisted
securities mainly represented the fair values of its
investment properties, net of its net current liabilities.
These investment properties which are situated in
Hong Kong are valued by an independent valuer, RHL
Appraisal Limited, with reference to prices realized
on actual sales and/or asking prices of comparable
properties of similar size, development scale, nature,
character and locations. The valuations have been made
on the assumption that the owner sells the investment
properties on the market in their existing state without
the benefit of a cash rebate, deferred terms contract,
leaseback, joint venture, management agreement or any
other similar arrangement which could serve to increase
the value of the properties. Management considered
that the net current liabilities approximated their fair
values due to their short-term maturities.

The fair values of available-for-sale financial assets are
within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy (see note 3.3).
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14

AHHESREE (&)

R2017F3H298 » AEEKWE S
BEEARAR ([RE]) B8ITR
6% o WHEN AL ESREE
(FFzE26(b)(iv)) ARR - @B E B}
SREMELER -

MESREELRRE-

BEERR  FLTEHFZAFE
TREEREMEZ QN FEGAR
ERBABFR)  ZEREVE
IREE - THEE BBRLUA N - B
RARE - MHE  BEAMLENA L
BYWENEREETERNER R
S REE % BB ERKFTTRT
EEMARARETHE -HESD
REREBAAMERNET S L
EREVEMERSOE  RIEMG
REXN EREE - AELE T
BRI Em AR MEEE
UL - EEER/R
BREFERERIPMELAR
FiE -

AfHEESREEZATEBR R
FTEHERZF=HK(RHZE3Z) -
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15 TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES, 15 RERESFHRERREE URE
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER & BARE R H 4 EW R E

RECEIVABLES

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT THT

Trade receivables FEWE 55078 70,499 105,331
Retention receivables EWRE 2 50,762 52,119
Trade and retention receivables EWE S5FIERREE 121,261 157,450

Deposits, prepayments and e ENREBERHEM

other receivables (note) EMERIE (H1iE) 6,810 6,991
Less: non-current portion B - FERNHERER (2,905) (765)
Current portion BIHAER 5> 3,905 6,226
note: The balance mainly represents rental deposit, Wi RERERREEES 98
prepayment for sub-contractor fee, prepayment BEMRE  #HEREHOE

for plant and equipment and other miscellaneous BRI R AMRRAN FO0R

prepayments.
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15

TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The credit period granted to trade customers other than
for retention receivables was within 45 days. The terms
and conditions in relation to the release of retention
vary from contract to contract, which may be subject
to practical completion, the expiry of the defect liability
period or a pre-agreed time period. The Group does not
hold any collateral as security.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
invoice date was as follows:

1 to 30 days 1230H
31 to 60 days 31260H
Total 5T

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention receivables
were classified as current assets. The ageing of the
retention receivables based on invoice date was as

follows:

Within 1 year —FR
Between 1 and 5 years —ERF
More than 5 years WBiEAF

154

15

BREZRERRES  UARE
ToENREREMERRE
(%)

BrIEMIRE 251 - B HEFER45
RARWEED - RERESH K
RRGHERESOMAE TR -
ARRAGERRT  REBETHK
BEAOENBEERET SH#EER
AEBEY EH5A EMERRERE
o

FEWE AR B E R A HEL
BRir oA E -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER THET
18,712 59,606
51,787 45,725
70,499 105,331

REFABERARBRRAN  BRUEKRER
DEBRBDEE - RBFREERIE

FERAHNREROT
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTERT TAT
8,617 10,058
41,623 41,221
522 840
50,762 52,119
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TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES,
AND DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

On 13 February 2017, a subsidiary of the Company
has filed a civil procedure in Macau court against a
customer to recover the retention receivables amounting
to HK$10,134,000. The litigation is still in progress as
at 31 March 2018. Taking into consideration the advice
from its legal representative, the directors consider that
the Group is fully entitled to payment to cover at least
the balance on the consolidated balance sheet.

As at 31 March 2018, there were no trade and retention

receivables which were past due (2017: Nil).

The carrying amounts of trade and retention receivables
approximated their fair values and were denominated in
the following currencies:

HK$ BT
MOP pd

As at 31 March 2018, there was no impairment in trade,
retention or other receivables (2017: Nil).

[

15

e PR RRME

BREZRERRES  URE
T BANRERAEMEKRRE
(&)

R20175E2H13H » KR A B A
A& 1t & F UK El10,134,00078 7T
ZEWRBERBIUERRERSE
SRR - WN2018F3AH31H » #%
FARDEEITH - KEREERENR
ENER EERAE A5EEZR
BESELIRESAGEERER
ERTREBRTK -

MR201843A31H » WEDHEAH
JEWE S FHBRRB S (20174 :
) o

RUESFARRESNEREE
BEQNFEMRSE - WA TG
& :

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FHET
96,252 125,651
25,009 31,799
121,261 157,450

N2018E3A31H  EWE 5 -
R & sk B h B YR R IB I & R (B
(20174 : 4&) o
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16

CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Contract costs incurred plus attributable
profits less foreseeable losses to date

Progress billings to date

Included in current assets/(liabilities)
are the following:

Due from customers for contract work

Due to customers for contract work

The balance of amounts due from customers
for contract work as at 31 March 2017 included
HK$9,374,000 not yet certified by a customer. On 14
November 2013, a subsidiary of the Company served
a notice of arbitration to this customer to settle the
dispute on the final payment of the contract.

In connection with the listing of the Company on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, a deed of indemnity (the “Deed of Indemnity”)
was signed on 25 September 2014, pursuant to which
Mr. Lau Chun Ming, irrecoverably and unconditionally
undertakes to pay up the entire sum or the shortfall and
other costs and expenses which may be made, suffered,
or incurred in relation to the arbitration, if any, on
demand by the Group if the Group fails to recover such
amount of HK$9,374,000.

156

BEZBMELEDN
BRI IS
S MR P T8 5B 18

BEZ A EE R

AAARBEE (BF)
R ERIAT

EUREFAEHNTREEER
ENEPAHNTIRESR

EEEHNIRE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
1,016,128 1,169,814
(1,113,763) | (1,288,907
(97,635) (64,093)
231 18,614
(97,866) (82,707)
(97,635) (64,093)

R2017F3A3IB Z BB F &4
TRSRERBIE—BEPH AR
& 799,374,000/ JT ° 7A20134F 11
A148 A RRHBRARRZAR
FELMERN  BUHBERrAEBE
A BT FEOAUE -

R2014F9H25H » AR R R E
BEERSMERARER LM
AR ERE ([AEZE])
Bt - ARRESBZIRELETA
B R A s - AR B R AR
W B A B8 2 189,374,000/ T 1%
HEAEEERE2ELNEHEERE
AT R M m Al g e
SXgEE B EMEBR KA (1
A) e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CONTRACTING WORK-IN-PROGRESS
(Continued)

On 30 November 2017, the final award of the arbitration
was issued concluding this customer as the successful
party to resist the claim by the Group, and the Group
should also pay a portion of this customer’s costs of
claim. Management of the Group decided to accept
the conclusion by arbitrator and the Deed of Indemnity
was consequently executed to compensate the
corresponding amount of HK$9,374,000 written off
from contracting work-in-progress to the costs of sales
and HK$9,502,000 costs of claim specified in the final
award charged to the administrative expense. The
reimbursement from the deed of indemnity is recorded
in other income (note 6).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank
Cash on hand

R1TE S
FERS

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted bank balances

Maximum exposure to credit risk
note: As at 31 March 2018, the restricted bank balance

represents a deposit of HK$3,020,000 (2017:
HK$20,864,000) placed by a director (note 21).

if) 7

SR GIRITAEER

16

17

ReMREEED

FrAERN &S EERR

e PR RRME

EEENIR(&E)

R20179F11 A30RH » ZIPE 2 &K
HRTUEDL ZRALEFKIN
BEAEEHE  MASEIE
XRNZEFPRE D BRKA o RNE
EEEEREEZMHAEELNLE
i WL RITRE RS - EHE
BRAREREREEHNIREPME
9,374,000/ T AE FE & HH DA R AETT K
X S SE R EORP R 2 B R K
759,502,000/ 7T ° 1R IR B R IRE
15 2 B 5B S EE A (B e
6) °

BERBEEZEEY
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
256,358 347,899
43 44
256,401 347,943
3,020 20,864
259,378 368,763
Kt 201843 A318 @ X R 4l

3R 17 45 8 1% %£3,020,000/% 7T
(20174 : 20,864,000/ 7T )
H—Z2EBEHFAMNES (K
21) °
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17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 17 BRERRESEEY(E)
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents Re RREFEWARZRHIERT
and restricted bank balances were denominated in the EHROEmEN N EBEE :

following currencies:

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
HK$ BT 258,331 352,885
MOP BT 815 15,418
Others Hip 275 504
259,421 368,807
18 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 18 BAX - - RORERFHE
RESERVES
(a)  Share capital (a) A& 7
Number of
shares HK$
RAEE BT
Ordinary Shares, authorised: BER GEE)
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 R2017%F3831H &
20183 A31H 4,000,000,000 10,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: LER (BROTRAR)
At 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018 R2017%3A31H &
2018437531H 1,680,000,000 4,200,000
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18 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND 18 BA& - RO EERRE(F)
RESERVES (Continued)

(o)  Share premium and reserves ) BHOBEERFEE

Available-
for-sale
financial
Share assets Other Retained
premium reserve reserves earnings Total
e
RGEE SREERE  HtEE  REEN @3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL ThT ThT TAL

(Note)
(Hi)

At 31 March 2016 R2016F3A31H 194,087 - 10,500 446,264 650,851
Profit for the year REERH - - - 78,980 78,980
Final dividends relating to the AHHE2016437318

year ended 31 March 2016 IFFENRERE - - - (29,400) (29,400)
Interim dividend relating to the AEHZ2017£3A31A

year ended 31 March 2017 HEERR SRS - = = (8,400) (8,400)
At 31 March 2017 R2017F3A318 194,087 - 10,500 487,444 692,031
Profit for the year EERMN - - - 5,519 5,519
Fair value gains on available- RHESRHEEL

for-sale financial assets DT ENE - 770 - - 770
Final dividends relating to the BEEZ017F3A31H

year ended 31 March 2017 IHEERRERE - - - (16,800) (16,800)
At 31 March 2018 R2018F3A31H 194,087 770 10,500 476,163 681,520
Note: &t -
Other reserves of the Group represented: (i) the AEEREMFHEERE : ()BIE
difference between the share capital of the subsidiaries 2014F TR 2 EHFTIED
acquired over the nominal value of the share capital HB A RMRA SN AIRERE
of the Company issued in exchange thereof, pursuant FARAMETAQARAE
to the reorganisation completed in 2014; and (i) the B ER  K(i)RiER2003F
difference between the aggregation of the nominal 5T RK HY B 48 BT URRE & = A b
value of the share capital of SWBP and SWEE acquired E = R AR R AR AN (B 8
over the nominal value of the share capital of Sam Woo M- SR AIRERA R AR AN %
Group Limited (“SW (BVI)”) issued in exchange thereof, 77HySam Woo Group Limited
pursuant to the reorganisation completed in 2003. (T=F@BV) ) RAmERNZ=

o
{56
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19 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 19

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax

liabilities were as follows:
Deferred income tax asset: BEEFSIHREE :
Recoverable after more 1218 A & K[
than 12 months
Deferred income tax liabilities: BELEFTBREE
Payable or to be settled more R1218 A& B sk &t 7E
than 12 months
Payable or to be settled R12{8 A NER s & 7E

within 12 months

Deferred income tax liabilities, net RIEMEHRAE—F58

The movement on the deferred income tax account was

as follows:

At beginning of the year REH]

Recognised in the consolidated statement R4r4& 2E W KRR
of comprehensive income (note 9) R (Hat9)

At end of the year REFRL

160

EEFTEH
EERIEEENELEHBEE BT
mR
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAETT
9,208 917
(56,017) (53,453)
(3,340) =
(50,149) (52,536)
RAEFTSTER B #8aT ¢
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET AT
(52,536) (43,651)
2,387 (8,885)
(50,149) (52,536)
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movements in deferred income tax liabilities and

assets, without taking into consideration the offsetting of

balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities

At 1 April 2016

Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

Offset against deferred income tax
assets

At 31 March 2017
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

At 31 March 2018

Deferred income tax assets

At 1 April 2016

Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

Offset against deferred income tax
liabilities

At 31 March 2017
Recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income

At 31 March 2018

19 EEFBH (Z)

EEFSHABNMEENES (I
TERERBBGRZEEERAZ
FERRETEH) AT -

BRIEFEHREE

Accelerated

Unrealised tax
profit depreciation Total
ABRERN  MEFERE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHT FHT
R2016F4A1H 1,700 80,841 82,541
R 2B ERA
2] - 11,372 11,372
ERIEFTIS & K 5
(1,700) = (1,700)
M20179F3H31H - 92,213 92,213
REEEERERA
TR - (831) (831)
201843 A31H - 91,382 91,382
RIEFMGEMEE
Unrealised
profit Tax losses Total
AEREA BIEEE #@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT FHT
R2016F4A1H = 38,890 38,890
RiFaE2HBERA
R 2,617 (130) 2,487
BRIERT{S & B
(1,700) - (1,700)
R2017%3831H 917 38,760 39,677
REEE2ABERA
o 8,291 (6,735) 1,556
R2018%3A31H 9,208 32,025 41,233
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19

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate
to the same tax jurisdiction. The following amounts,
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Deferred income tax liabilities
Deferred income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax
losses carried forward to the extent that realisation of
the related tax benefit through future taxable profits
is probable. As at 31 March 2018, the Group had
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$4,997,000
(2017: HK$5,624,000) that can be carried forward
to offset against future taxable income, of which an
amount of HK$1,264,000 (2017: Nil) will expire in 2020
and an amount of HK$3,733,000 (2017: HK$5,624,000)
has no expiry date.

162

EXEFBHRAR
BEEFSREE

19

WA PS8 (42)

BEELEFRSREE (&)

ELEMEHREERBERA KA
5% BRI TRER G BV EA P 1S 31 B 2 B
B SR B ELE - BREMS
Mo £ R — R 5 B A [ AR R B T 1A
i - RNEEABEERBERTEIIW
2B (NMELEE YHKRER) I
o

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
(59,357) (63,453)
9,208 917
(50,149) (562,536)

¥ 78 FEL A 754 765 ) 2 ] 35 3B R SR FE =R
Tt e A B3R - AR BLAT A B ML IE
ERERRLEMSHEE - 12018
F3A3IBE  AEBMREER
T 18 &5 18 #94,997,0007% JT (2017
F 15,624,000 7C) * ZEEEEA
EEBEEERRERRBA
& H1,264,000% 7T (20174 : &)
14 FA2020%F F| #§ 3,733,000 7T
(20174 : 5,624,000/ 7t) I £ 2|
HE -
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20 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, 20 ENHEZRERRES  EFXR
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 15 & H At FE 3 :K 18
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
Trade payables ERE 5308 39,462 68,372
Retention payables FE{REE < 13,970 11,162
Total trade and retention payables EE S5 ER
RE B 53,432 79,534
Accruals and other payables (note) FEET IR R H At
A (M) 8,943 13,969
62,375 93,503
note: The amounts mainly represent accruals and other B ZERBEXEARBEEET
payables for constructing work-in-progress, wages, B IE ZEkREXERHA
legal and professional fees and transportation costs. 18 B3] B AN B JE 5T AR IE K H th B
308 -
The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on B E 57 EREEE A BRI
invoice date was as follows: DR :
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHIT
0 to 30 days 0%230H 38,619 67,127
31 to 60 days 31£260H 10 387
61 to 90 days 61%290H - 28
181 to 365 days 181%365H 3 =

More than 365 days @365 H 830 830
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20 TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES, 20
ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

EREZRERRES - B
HRHAMENRE(F)

REEABERBERA  BNRES
"*F%MEJJE1 o R R &R ER

In the consolidated balance sheet, retention payables
were classified as current liabilities. The ageing of the

retention payables was as follows:

BT

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET THET

Within 1 year —F X 4,503 3,919
Between 1 and 5 years —EFZhF 9,461 7,243
Over 5 years AEE 6 -
13,970 11,162

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables

approximated their fair value and were denominated in

the following currencies:

BNESHARRESWREESR
BENRFERE WATIEE

sHE -

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000

T FHET

HK$ BT 48,806 72,930
MOP R FTHE 4,431 4,431
Others HAh 195 2,173
53,432 79,534
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AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Deed of Indemnity, Mr. Lau Chun Ming,
a director of the Company, irrevocably undertakes to
deposit a sum of HK$20,000,000 into a bank account
under the name of the Group for the purpose of
indemnifying the Group against any claims, challenges
and rejections from the Hong Kong tax authority and/or
Macau tax authority and costs incurred in relation to the
Group’s tax liabilities arising up to October 2014.

In the event that no claim in relation to taxation is
instituted by both Macau tax authority and Hong Kong
taxation authority against the Group within seven years
after the date on which dealings in the shares on the
Main Board first commenced, i.e. 16 October 2014
(“the Listing Date”), the balance shall be released
and returned to Mr. Lau Chun Ming on the seventh
anniversary of the Listing Date.

In June 2017, the final and conclusive tax assessment
and final tax demand note for the years 2013 and 2014
were issued by the tax authority in Macau. The Group
has no outstanding amount on the required tax for the
years of assessment of 2013 and 2014 in Macau; the
Macau tax assessment for the years 2013 and 2014
have been concluded, final and settled. There is no tax
liability so far demanded by Hong Kong tax authority in
respect of the transactions and income contemplated
under the Machinery Lease Agreement and the
Machinery Agency Agreement.

In June 2017, the directors (including all of the
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
resolved to partially return HK$17,000,000 out of
the deposit of HK$20,000,000 pursuant of Deed of
Indemnity together with all the bank interests earned
up to 12 July 2017 amounting to HK$1,006,000 in
view of the updated tax positions mentioned above and
the estimate on maximum exposure made by the tax
advisers of the Company. The remaining HK$3,000,000
represented the estimated remaining tax exposure of the
Group. The payment of HK$18,006,000 was made to
Mr. Lau Chun Ming in July 2017.
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BN—-—RESFA

BIERERE AR ZESZIRA
AT B RBEEASE
WEAB B R, FORPI T D
PFHRHEEMRR - HHRED -
R AEEE E2014F108 E4E
MR EBERBENKA  MASE
A T R1T R =17 A 17 5£20,000,000
&L e

WARBRDEXAEREREE 2
H (Bl2014F10A16H8 ([ L H
M) BEFA - BB R
BERGHFIMESASEEIEES
FMIERERZR - AIBRERKR LW A
MECHAFTEABRBRRE TR
RS A o

R201766 A - BFIFEFEBFIE &
20134 K20145F & 48 KR E 1
THRRKARBANE  AEEW
7K (8 8 MR PI20134F K20144F
I E AT E R IE ¢ mRPI2013
FR2014FAB DT - ZRRE
Bt BAERBRES WEMMESH
ERBERRERERBEETILIR
WA ZREURERFHIE -

B0 il &AM RS KA A A
MISERED M ERERRGE - B
2017F6 A ARREE (BIEM
EBNATES) ZAFERE
Y5 I8 120,000,000/ JTLIER A H
#64317,000,000/ LR ZEF X
HE2017F7 128 FrBtER ey — 1))
R 17 7% ;X F £.1,006,000/% JC ° &
"~8,000,0007% 7T 18 7 & B /Y & 51
R TSR - )R2017F7 A E [
23 BB %t 4 32 118,006,000 7T
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22

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR (Continued) 21

The balance of amount due to a director is secured
by restricted bank balances of HK$3,020,000 (2017:
HK$20,864,000) and interest bearing at effective

interest rate of 1.38% (2017: 1.47%).

BORROWINGS

Non-current
Obligations under finance leases
Long-term bank loans

Current
Short-term bank loans
Current portion of long-term bank loans
due for repayment within one year

Obligations under finance leases due for
repayment within one year

Total borrowings

22

FERE
MEHESME
RHRITER

E
FEHERITER

R—FREHEED

RHIRITERD
BNEAER >

R—FREHEEN

MEHEERME

B K HEHE

166

BN—-—BEEREA(E)

BN —REEREZE&BHZR
%1 68 17 45 £43,020,000% 7T (2017
F : 20,864,000/ 7T) A - Wi
B H%E1.38% (20174 : 1.47%)
TR

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THETT
9,115 26,259
6,789 26,861
15,904 53,120
29,066 136,933
18,980 36,735
17,161 24,953
65,207 198,621
81,111 251,741
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22 BORROWINGS (Continued)

(@) The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(1)

(i)

Bank loans

The maturity of bank loans are as follows:

Within 1 year —FR
Between 1 and 2 years —EME
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF

Obligations under finance leases

The maturity of obligations under finance
lease are as follows:

Within 1 year —FRN
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF
Between 2 and 5 years —ERF

22

B (&)

@ EFNBHBERMOT

G  RiITEH

RITEFRNIHBER

m :
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET TET
48,046 173,668
4,827 19,535
1,962 7,326
54,835 200,529

(i) AEHMERT

BMEMERENEH

BT

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT TAT
17,161 24,953
7,689 17,140
1,426 9,119
26,276 51,212
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22 BORROWINGS (Continued) 22 fBER(E)

(a)

The maturity of borrowings was as follows:

(Continued)

(ifi) The obligations under finance leases are

(@) EROIEBMBEROT : (&)

(i)  BEHEE LB

as follows: N
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Gross finance leases BEAEEE
— minimum lease payments —REBEEMK
Within 1 year —FR 17,852 26,396
Between 1 and 2 years —EWF 7,855 17,797
Between 2 and 5 years —E=h4F 1,443 9,297
27,150 53,490
Future finance charges on ARHBEHRE
finance lease BT 2 (874) (2,278)
Present value of obligations BERERANEE
under finance leases 26,276 51,212
(b)  The weighted average interest rates were as (o)  MNEFHFELMT :
follows:
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Short-term bank loans RHISRITER 1.7% 2.4%
Llong-term bank loans RHEJIRITER 4.1% 3.8%
Obligations under finance leases BERERME 3.8% 3.7%
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BORROWINGS (Continued)

(c)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
were denominated in the following currencies:

HK$
EUR

e
S dl

R

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
approximated their fair value as the impact of
discounting is not significant. The fair values are
within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

As at 31 March 2018, the finance leases are
secured by certain plant and equipment with
carrying amounts of HK$83,709,000 (2017:
HK$123,800,000) of certain subsidiaries and
guarantees provided by the Company.

The Group’s banking facilities and obligations
under finance leases are subject to annual
review and the utilised facilities are secured or
guaranteed by:

Secured A
Unsecured i
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© ARERBFRHOKREENLT
S EHEHE ¢

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
52,045 194,808
29,066 56,933
81,111 251,741

(d HREBEFEERMY  A5H
B0 fE AR E B B A N T EAE
aoNFEBRATFEER
B2 4 o

() MR2018F3A31H ' g & M
ENETHBAREREES
83,709,000/ 7T (20174 :
123,800,000/ ) ) & T
W R R E R IR R B AR
AR MEIELR o

(f) AEBEWRTEERBEM
EAESFORETER

BEBREEHEN TSAE
I HIELR -
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TET
52,045 105,358
29,066 146,383
81,111 251,741
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22 BORROWINGS (Continued) 22 fBER(E)

) The Group’s banking facilities and obligations (f) REBEWBRTEERRENR
under finance leases are subject to annual EAESEHHETER
review and the utilised facilities are secured or BEBRAEERNTSIEE
guaranteed by: (Continued) W IER - (8B)

(i) an unlimited guarantee given by certain (i) 201843 H318 -
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018 (2017: BE T HE A AR
same); and A IR REAE (R (2017

F AR Rk

(i) certain plant and equipment of the Group (iiy  ANEEZETFTHEWM R

as detailed in notes 13(a) and (b). = (FER M FE13(a)
(b)) o

The Group did not breach any financial bank B E2018F3H31H IEF

covenant during the year ended 31 March 2018 B AKENEEREMNS

(2017: none). BhERITREE (20174  £E) -
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23

COMMITMENTS

(@) Capital commitments
As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any
capital commitment (2017: Nil).

(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease rental
expenses in respect of hiring equipment, office
and storage premises, and quarters for workers
and directors under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:
No later than 1 year TEBR—F
Later than 1 year and no later ER—FEBTESR

than 5 years

(c) Operating lease commitments - as lessor
As at 31 March 2018, the Group did not have any
operating lease commitments as a lessor (2017:
Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has given guarantees
on performance bonds of HK$17,751,000 and
HK$16,500,000, respectively, in respect of two
construction contracts of the Group in its ordinary
course of business (2017: same). The performance
bonds are expected to be released in accordance with
the terms of the respective construction contracts.
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B

M20184F3H31H - A& E
W £ ] B R IE (2017
F ) o

REMEAE—EREABEA

RETA G EHERH
REE EFrERREYE
AEETREEBEEHAR
REESHAABEARAT
HAR A S A

2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$’'000
TERT TAT
8,130 6,932
6,662 1,805
14,792 8,737

REMEAZE-EREEA

R20184F3A31H ' "&E E
WEAHEAF DB E
A 4R & 70 & A HE (20174 -
=) o

FREE

MR2018F3H31H  AEBE B
REBHPHEBEHE NI RIBEE
EHRMELAREIIELERD B
17,751,000/ 7T, }2. 16,500,000/ 7T
(20174F : HHFA) - ZEBAR KA
IR S B EE DR IERRERRR o
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25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25
OF CASH FLOWS

(@)

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net

cash generated from operations:

Profit before income tax

Depreciation of plant and
equipment (note 13)

(Gain)/loss on disposal of plant
and equipment (note 6)

Write-off of plant and equipment

(note 13)

Finance income (note 8)

Finance costs (note 8)

Net exchange differences

Changes in working capital:

Decrease in trade and

retention receivables
Decrease/(increase) in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables

Decrease in amounts due from
customers for contract work

Increase in trade and
retention payables

Decrease in accruals and

other payables

Increase in amounts due to
customers for contract work
Decrease in amount due to a director

Net cash generated from operations

BR T 15 54 B s A
et K 3R 4T &
(H12#13)

o5 M % B2 A
(Wzx) E518
(Kiz#6)

T SE AR R R
(H12£13)
s (H1iE8)
MsBR (#iE8)

FERER

LEESEE

W E 5 7RI K
RE 2R

Be  BNREAER
HoAth FEU R IR
m (3Em)

Bl EFPAEHTRE
SRR

BN B S HRARIRE
LN

FERTFRIA N H A FE A
FRIER

ENEFPAKNTRE
AR

N —REZFHIERED

REEBMEREER

2

ReRERERWE

(@)

BR AT 15 0 A1 4 ) ER AL i ZE 75
PSR/ FREME IR ¢
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
5,625 91,215
26,971 25,268
(5,960) 19
172 1,101
(2,637) (2,677)
4,478 10,330
7,459 -
36,108 125,256
36,189 138,504
181 4,411)
18,383 9,948
(26,102) (7,773)
(5,026) (2,329)
15,159 54,035
(18,006) o
56,886 313,280
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25 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 25 HZEBELERERMWZE(E)
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, b) REEREREBERT  HE
proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment B EEENESRIBER
comprise: 7 -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
Net book amount (note 13) BREVFE (#72£713) 31,789 47
Gain/(loss) on disposal of plant H S B N SR A
and equipment (note 6) W, (E18)
(Kizte6) 5,960 (19)
Cash proceeds from sales of HEEE R RENRS
plant and equipment FriS k18 37,749 28

(©) Non-cash transactions (©) FRERH
During the year ended 31 March 2018, (i) finance REE2018F3H31H LEF
lease arrangement was entered into by the Group () SERBEESST
for acquisition of plant and equipment amounting (20174 : 294,000/ 7T) A
to nil (2017: HK$294,000); and (i) plant and B REETT L MEHEZR
equipment amounting to nil (2017: nil) was B R(i)ZEB T (20174 ¢
acquired through exchange of certain plant and TR B REETE
equipment. B AR T B % A i

i o
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347,943 (51212  (136,933) (63,596) 96,202
24,936 - - 24,936

(36,628) (559) (37,187)

151,954 38,386 190,340

(7,459) (7,459)

(91,542) (91,542)

256,401 (26,276) (29,066) (25,769) 175,290
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 26 EEALTRS
Related parties are those parties that have the ability RaEE A LB R iR - HL[E 4
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence A% E 77 5 n] S H b A AR IR E
over the other party in holding power over the investee; TEEINATITEERFE NN
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its AT BAESZEHELXHTIK
involvement with the investee; and the ability to use o BRI E % Tl PN
its power over the investee to affect the amount of the & AR ARG WIRE S HE N
investor’s returns. Parties are also considered to be BREERRSEMNAL - XHFA
related if they are subject to common control or joint 2= Il Sl Bk S P B B9 A T IR AR 5
control. Related parties may be individuals or other A o EHE A LA BEASEAM

entities. T

(@)  The directors of the Company are of the view that (a) RABIESZRE " AT
the following companies were related parties that BB ERNEEETR S

had transactions or balances with the Group:

Name of the related party

BBAL &R

Mr. Lau Chun Ming
ZITREA £
Cheer Crown Limited

ZEARAF

Cheer Profit International
Enterprise Limited

BN EBR A A

Cheer Wealth International
Development Limited

ERERERARAA

East Ascent Enterprise Limited

RACEBRAA
Healthy World Investment Limited

REREGRAR
Long Ascent Development Limited

RAERBRLA
Sky Ease Holdings Limited
Sky Ease Holdings Limited

LR A EERE B A T

Relationship with the Group
BEAKEHEE

Director of the Company

RABIESE

A related company beneficially wholly owned by
Mr. Lau Chun Ming

REREASLE A2 BB m A R 7]

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HASEETEERARGKESZEHER BB LA

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAEEETEERERGEXNE2ERAMNRBH AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group and their family member

HAKEETEERARGKE 2 EHEANBEH AR

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HAEEETESEEMHANME QA

A related company wholly owned by certain directors of
the Group

HASEETEEF2ERANHEB AR

A related company wholly owned by Mr. Lau Chun Ming

HENRA R E2E A A R
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26 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 26

(o)

Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following
transactions were carried out with related parties
at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

Continuing transactions

Paid to related parties:

Rental expenses to Cheer
Crown Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to East Ascent
Enterprise Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to Cheer Profit
International Enterprise Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to Long Ascent
Development Limited (note ii)

Rental expenses to Cheer Wealth
International Development Limited (note i)

Rental expenses to Healthy World
Investment Limited (note i)

Expense payable to a related party:
Interest expense payable to
a director (note iii)

Non-recurring transaction

Paid to a related party:

Acquisition of available-for-sale
financial assets from Sky Ease
Holdings Limited (note iv)

Note i: Rental expenses for storage of machinery and

equipment are based on terms pursuant to the

tenancy agreements as mutually agreed by the

relevant parties.

Note ii: Rental expenses for directors’ quarters are

based on terms pursuant to the tenancy

BEALTRS (&)
(b) X5
BREGA SRR EMM IS
Frig & oh - N5 B R B
ALTIRE 515 E IS FGETT
TR S
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT FHET
HEL S
ENEBALRE :
YR FREEBR AN
HerX (H:2i) 2,160 2,160
IRFEACERR DDA
AeRE (W) 46 46
TRNFENEBLEER
NEMBEERST (Hti) 46 46
TRFRABRER DDA
AeRmL (Hiti) 600 600
IRTFERBEBREEER
NEMAEERST (W) 876 876
FRREEREERAAMN
MeRE (W) 600 600
FEBEBA LRI
ENESFSFAY (#atii)
163 305
=S
ClEBALHRE :
U8 Sky Ease Holdings
Limited#) 7] fE &
SREE (Wiziv) - 19,750
Hiati - FAVETT B AR & 7%
B4 F S JhE
KBRS H ERE#H
TE B TR 4 H IR TR ©
Kretii . FR{EEEEEMME
TR TIERE M
EHERBEHAE

agreements as mutually agreed by the relevant

parties.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 26 BHBHATIXRS(E)
(b)  Transactions (Continued) b)) R5#E)
Note iii: Interest expense was payable to a director, Mr. Biatii - F BB TR ER
Lau Chun Ming, in respect of the amount due to —REBFIAME
a director (note 26(d)). NEZZIRE LA

(Bt 5E26(d)) °

Note iv:On 29 March 2017, the Group has entered Biativ: 20173 29
into an agreement with Sky Ease Holdings H 7N & B ESky
Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr. Lau, Ease Holdings
for the acquisition of 5% of issued capital of Limited (B £ &
Gold Champion at a cash consideration of =8/ X =-A/NCID]
HK$19,750,000. The acquisition is accounted S mReR
for as available-for-sale financial assets (note ©19,750,000/% 7T
14). KEeW B %7

f& 5% o Y & LA
A HEERERE

(B EE14) ABR ©

(©) Key management compensation () FTEEE A SR
Key management includes directors TEEBEASAEAEERSE
(executive and non-executive) of the Group. E (HTEIEHTT) - B
The compensation paid or payable to key EREENFHENTFEES
management for employee services is disclosed 3B A B H R BN 5 B 5529 (a)
in note 29(a). 5 o
(d)  Balance - non-trade d) HEH-FES
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Payable to a director: B —REE7E .
Mr. Lau Chun Ming (note 21) RIRRB LA (HfaE21) 3,020 20,864
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 27 BRARERAA
Management consider that Silver Bright Holdings & I8 2 R ASilver Bright _Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Limited (—RI R RB R LB &S
Islands, is the ultimate holding company of the Group, BN YA R]) BN B A &R IERR
which is a company indirectly owned by a discretionary DA ZARHANRBESZLT AR
trust, the beneficiary of which is Ms. Leung Lai So. m=ANEEETHESRS -

i
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28

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY

28 ARRAMNEEABERERREZD

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FET
Assets EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries I B A FMIEE 5,927 5,927
Current assets REEE
Prepayments BRI 68 67
Amount due from subsidiaries FE U B A B I 104,151 77,462
Income tax receivable FEURET 157 - 5
Restricted bank balances SR HIERTT A B 3,020 20,864
Cash and cash equivalents HeMEeEEY 94,198 123,342
201,437 | 221,740
Total assets EEHRE 207,364 227,667
Equity E=
Capital and reserves EAXRHE
Share capital f% 7 4,200 4,200
Reserves et (a) 200,065 202,414
Total equity RS RE 204,265 206,614
Liabilities &
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to a director B —REEFHIE 3,020 20,864
Accruals and other payables FERT SR & b FE T
IR 79 189
Total liabilities aEeE 3,090 21,053
Total equity and liabilities EEkEEEE 207,364 227,667

ARAFINEERBEREN201856
AooBHESZESH & WA A

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 26 June 2018 and were signed on

its behalf.

ITRERERE -

Lau Chun Ming Leung Lai So
214 83 RE&
Director Director

=ZE oo

178



—E-N\FFH

28

=MEEEEARDE
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BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

note (a):

Reserve movement of the Company

At 31 March 2016 ®201643A31H

Profit for the year FEEF

Final dividends relating to BBEZE2016FE3A31H
the year ended 31 March 2016 IFFEH)RERE

Interim dividend relating to BHEE2017F3A31H

the year ended 31 March 2017  |FEEH T HKE

At 31 March 2017 201743 A31H

At 31 March 2017 2017463 A31H
Profit for the year FEERA

Final dividends relating to BREE2017F3A31H

the year ended 31 March 2017 |FFE#)REARR 2

At 31 March 2018 R2018F3H31H

e PR RRME

EARANEEEERRREERD
(&)
Kiit(a) -
ARENREES
Share Other Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R E Hitvf# REBF B3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FAT FET THET
194,087 5,927 8,952 208,966
- - 31,248 31,248
- = (29,400) (29,400)
- - (8,400 (8,400
194,087 5,927 2,400 202,414
194,087 5,927 2,400 202,414
- - 14,451 14,451
- - (16,800) (16,800)
194,087 5,927 51 200,065

Other reserve of the Company represents the difference

between the net asset value of SW (BVI) acquired over the

nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in

exchange thereof, pursuant to the reorganisation completed in

2014.
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29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 EEEANRER (&)
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) =W (E)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE017H3A31BLER
Employer’ s
contribution
Discretionary Directors”  to pension
Fees Salaries bonus Quarters scheme Total
Eim
iU HE]
fe g6 BERA  EZREE fEHOEX @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL THL THL TAL

Executive directors yEs

Mr. Lau Chun Mings# BRmEL - 797 66 643 - 1,506
Mr. Lau Chun Kwok* HRE S £ - 840 70 600 11 1,521
Mr. Lau Chun Ka ARFEE - 840 70 600 18 1528
Ms. Leung Lai So 2EELL - 456 38 324 - 818

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Professor Wong Sue Cheun, T3 4K
Roderick 240 - - - - 240
Mr. Chu Tak Sum RERLE 240 - = _ _ 240
Mr. Ip Tin Chee, Arnold EXBEL 240 2 L _ _ 040
720 2,933 244 2,167 29 6,093
# Chairman 6 *fE

* Chief Executive Officer * TR
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29

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The remuneration shown above represents
remuneration received from the Group by these
directors in their capacity as employees to the
Group and/or in their capacity as directors of the

companies how comprising the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, none of
the directors of the Company (i) received or paid
any remuneration in respect of accepting office;
(i) received or paid emoluments in respect of
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries
undertaking; or (iii) waived or has agreed to waive

any emolument (2017: Same).

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year ended 31st

March 2018 (2017: Same).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year ended 31st

March 2018 (2017: Same).

(d) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

During the year ended 31st March 2018, no
consideration was paid by the company to third
parties for making available directors’ services

(2017: Same).
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EEEARER (F)

BEEMe (F)

EEMEREAZFEEER/AR
SEEE R HEFAKE
ETERARANEEAAKE
WER B B & o

REZE2018F3H31H LEF
EA - BEARQREE@)5
2 52 B W BR 5 32 A+ A ] BM
& (\FEBATEARRAK
HIt B A T AESEHNR
TEURER B 7 (SRR B & ¢ 3%
(il EE KR B MEE R B £
(20174 : AR °

E=ZRKRERN

HZE2018F3HA31H IEFE
BEfEE E B W 3k G IR
ERIRFEF) (20174 : 46
@) °

EEZBBEN

H Z=2018F3A31H IEFE
42 T = 2 U BN R 5 Uk ER
ERBEEE R T (20174 : 48
&) o

ERESREMAE=7
SNZRE

H £2018F3H31H LEF
B ARARNEGERES
BR 7% ) (£ AT 88 = 57 24K
B (20174 : FHRA) °
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29 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 29 ESEANRERE)

(Continued)

()  Information about loans, quasi-loans and other (e) BRAES - IEFIFAEA
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies BrEREERELENE
corporate by and controlled entities with such ZIRBEUES  URERZ
directors EATHEMRZHER

During the year ended 31st March 2018, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing
arrangements in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities with
such directors (2017: Same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year (2017: Same).
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SAM WOO CONSTRUCTION GROUP LIMITED

Five Year Financial Summary

L EHBEBRE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities
and equity of the Group for the last five financial years is as

follows.

Results

Revenue

Gross Profit
Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Assets
Non-current assets
Current assets

Total assets
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity

Note:

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2014 and of the assets, equity and liabilities as at 31
March 2014 have been extracted from the Prospectus.

The summary above does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
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AEERNGROAAMBFEEND TERE
REE - BEARESHAOT

Year ended 31 March
HBZ3A3MHLLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS$000
FET FHTT TET T FHET
518,479 817,682 1,061,482 851,285 492,734
44,045 145,225 210,012 306,245 165,634
5,625 91,215 165,509 241,010 129,895
(106)  (12,235)  (12,632) (21,842 (2,809)
5,519 78,980 152,877 219,168 127,086
As at 31 March
MASH31H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$000
FET FHT THT FHIT THET
608,385 654,959 608,314 513,389 403,802
385,418 551,115 546,640 472,831 223,670
993,803 1,206,074 1,154,954 986,220 627,472
78,281 127,437 185,214 184,453 69,652
229,802 382,406 314,689 273,987 339,101
308,083 509,843 499,903 458,440 408,753
685,720 696,231 655,051 527,780 218,719
Brat -
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